

CONTAINING ALL NOTICES PUBLISHED ONLINE BETWEEN 4 AND 10 NOVEMBER 2019

PRINTED ON 11 NOVEMBER 2019 | NUMBER 8206 PUBLISHED BY AUTHORITY | ESTABLISHED 1665 WWW.THEGAZETTE.CO.UK

Contents

State/878*

Royal family/

Parliament Assemblies & Government/893*

Honours & Awards/ Church/

Environment & infrastructure/894*

Health & medicine/

Other Notices/895*

Money/

Companies/896*

People/900*

Terms & Conditions/901*

* Containing all notices published online between 4 and 10 November 2019

STATE

PROCLAMATIONS

BY THE QUEEN A PROCLAMATION FOR DECLARING THE CALLING OF A NEW PARLIAMENT ELIZABETH R.

Whereas We, by and with the advice of Our Privy Council, being desirous and resolved, as soon as may be, to meet Our People, and to have their Advice in Parliament, do publish this, Our Royal Proclamation, and do hereby make known to all Our loving Subjects Our Royal Will and Pleasure to call a new Parliament to be holden at Westminster on Tuesday the seventeenth day of December next: And We do hereby also, by this Our Royal Proclamation under Our Great Seal of Our Realm, require Writs to be issued by Our Lord High Chancellor for causing the Lords Spiritual and Temporal who are to serve in the said Parliament to give their Attendance in Our said Parliament on the said date.

Given at Our Court at Buckingham Palace, this sixth day of November in the Year of our Lord two thousand and nineteen and in the sixty-eighth year of Our Reign.

GOD SAVE THE QUEEN

(3422014)

BY THE QUEEN A PROCLAMATION DETERMINING THE SPECIFICATIONS AND DESIGNS FOR A NEW SERIES OF FIVE HUNDRED POUND, TWO HUNDRED POUND, ONE HUNDRED POUND, FIFTY POUND, TWENTY-FIVE POUND, TEN POUND, ONE POUND AND FIFTY PENCE GOLD COINS; A NEW SERIES OF FIVE HUNDRED POUND, TEN POUND, TWO POUND, ONE POUND, FIFTY PENCE, TWENTY PENCE, TEN PENCE AND FIVE PENCE SILVER COINS; AND A NEW SERIES OF TWENTY-FIVE POUND PLATINUM COINS ELIZABETH R.

Whereas under section 3(1)(a), (b), (c), (cc), (cd), (d) and (dd) of the Coinage Act 1971 We have power, with the advice of Our Privy Council, by Proclamation to determine the denomination, the design and dimensions of coins to be made at Our Mint, to determine the weight and fineness of certain gold coins, the remedy to be allowed in the making of such coins and their least current weight, and to determine the weight and composition of coins other than gold coins or coins of silver of Our Maundy money, and the remedy to be allowed in the making of such coins, to provide for the manner of measurement of the variation from the standard weight of coins, and to determine the percentage of impurities which such coins may contain:

And Whereas under section 3(1)(f) and (ff) of the Coinage Act 1971 We have power, with the advice of Our Privy Council, by Proclamation to direct that coins made at Our Mint other than gold, silver, cupro-nickel and bronze coins shall be current and that any coin shall be legal tender for the payment of any amount:

And Whereas under section 6(2) of the Coinage Act 1971 We have power, with the advice of Our Privy Council, by Proclamation to prescribe the composition of the standard trial plates to be used for determining the justness of coins of any metal other than gold, silver or cupro-nickel:

And Whereas it appears to Us desirable to order that there should be made at Our Mint a new series of coins of the denominations of five hundred pounds, two hundred pounds, one hundred pounds, fifty pounds, twenty-five pounds, ten pounds, one pound and fifty pence in gold, a new series of coins of the denominations of five hundred pounds, ten pounds, two pounds, one pound, fifty pence, twenty pence, ten pence and five pence in silver, and a new series of coins in the denomination of twenty-five pounds in platinum.

We, therefore, in pursuance of the said section 3(1)(a), (b), (c), (cc), (cd), (d), (dd), (f) and (ff), the said section 6(2), and of all other powers enabling Us in that behalf, do hereby, by and with the advice of Our Privy Council, proclaim, direct and ordain as follows:

FIVE HUNDRED POUND GOLD COIN

- 1. (1) A new gold coin of the denomination of five hundred pounds shall be made, being a coin of a standard weight of 156.295 grammes, a standard diameter of 50 millimetres, a millesimal fineness of not less than 999.9, and being circular in shape.
- (2) In the making of the said gold coin a remedy (that is, a variation from the standard weight or diameter specified above) shall be allowed of an amount not exceeding the following, that is to say:

- (a) a variation from the said standard weight of an amount per coin of 0.8 grammes; and
- (b) a variation from the said standard diameter of 0.125 millimetres per coin.
- (3) The least current weight of the said gold coin shall be 154.5 grammes.
- (4) The variation from the standard weight will be measured as the average of a sample of not more than one kilogram of the coin.
- (5) The design of the said gold coin shall be as follows:

For the obverse impression Our effigy with the inscription "- ELIZABETH II \cdot D \cdot G \cdot REG \cdot F \cdot D \cdot 500 POUNDS", and for the reverse a depiction of the figure of Britannia set against a Union flag and the inscription "BRITANNIA 5OZ 999.9 FINE GOLD" and the date "2020". The coin shall have a grained edge.

TWO HUNDRED POUND GOLD COIN

- 2. (1) A new coin of gold of the denomination of two hundred pounds shall be made, being a coin of a standard weight of 62.42 grammes, a standard diameter of 40 millimetres, a millesimal fineness of not less than 999.9, and being circular in shape.
- (2) In the making of the said gold coin a remedy (that is, a variation from the standard weight, diameter or fineness specified above) shall be allowed of an amount not exceeding the following, that is to say:
- (a) a variation from the said standard weight of an amount per coin of 0.5 grammes;
- (b) a variation from the said standard diameter of 0.125 millimetres per coin; and
- (c) a variation from the said millesimal fineness of two per mille.
- (3) The least current weight of the said gold coin shall be 61.80 grammes.
- (4) The variation from the standard weight will be measured as the average of a sample of not more than one kilogram of the coin.
- (5) The design of the said gold coin shall be as follows:

'For the obverse impression Our effigy with the inscription "- ELIZABETH II \cdot D \cdot G \cdot REG \cdot F \cdot D \cdot 200 POUNDS", and for the reverse a depiction of the figure of Britannia set against a Union flag and the inscription "BRITANNIA 2OZ 999.9 FINE GOLD" and the date "2020". The coin shall have a grained edge.

ONE HUNDRED POUND GOLD COIN

- 3. (1) A new coin of gold of the denomination of one hundred pounds shall be made, being a coin of a standard weight of 31.21 grammes, a standard diameter of 32.69 millimetres, a millesimal fineness of not less than 999.9, and being circular in shape.
- (2) In the making of the said gold coin a remedy (that is, a variation from the standard weight or diameter specified above) shall be allowed of an amount not exceeding the following, that is to say:
- (a) a variation from the said standard weight of an amount per coin of 0.15 grammes; and
- (b) a variation from the said standard diameter of 0.125 millimetres per coin.
- (3) The least current weight of the said gold coin shall be 31.01 grammes.
- (4) The variation from the standard weight will be measured as the average of a sample of not more than one kilogram of the coin.
- (5) The design of the said gold coin shall be as follows:

For the obverse impression Our effigy with the inscription "- ELIZABETH II \cdot D \cdot G \cdot REG \cdot F \cdot D \cdot 100 POUNDS", and for the reverse a depiction of the figure of Britannia set against a Union flag and the inscription "BRITANNIA 1OZ 999.9 FINE GOLD" and the date "2020". The coin shall have a grained edge.

FIFTY POUND GOLD COIN

- 4. (1) A new coin of gold of the denomination of fifty pounds shall be made, being a coin of a standard weight of 15.6 grammes, a standard diameter of 27 millimetres, a millesimal fineness of not less than 999.9, and being circular in shape.
- (2) In the making of the said gold coin a remedy (that is, a variation from the standard weight or diameter specified above) shall be allowed of an amount not exceeding the following, that is to say:
- (a) a variation from the said standard weight of an amount per coin of 0.045 grammes; and
- (b) a variation from the said standard diameter of 0.125 millimetres per coin.
- (3) The least current weight of the said gold coin shall be 15.505 grammes.
- (4) The variation from the standard weight will be measured as the average of a sample of not more than one kilogram of the coin.
- (5) The design of the said gold coin shall be as follows:

For the obverse impression Our effigy with the inscription "- ELIZABETH II \cdot D \cdot G \cdot REG \cdot F \cdot D \cdot 50 POUNDS", and for the reverse a depiction of the figure of Britannia set against a Union flag and the inscription "BRITANNIA 1/2OZ 999.9 FINE GOLD" and the date "2020". The coin shall have a grained edge.

TWENTY-FIVE POUND GOLD COIN

- 5. (1) A new coin of gold of the denomination of twenty-five pounds shall be made, being a coin of a standard weight of 7.8 grammes, a standard diameter of 22 millimetres, a millesimal fineness of not more than 999.9, and being circular in shape.
- (2) In the making of the said gold coin a remedy (that is, a variation from the standard weight or diameter specified above) shall be allowed of an amount not exceeding the following, that is to say:
- (a) a variation from the said standard weight of an amount per coin of 0.025 grammes; and
- (b) a variation from the said standard diameter of 0.125 millimetres per
- (3) The least current weight of the said gold coin shall be 7.75 grammes.
- (4) The variation from the standard weight will be measured as the average of a sample of not more than one kilogram of the coin.
- (5) The design of the said gold coin shall be as follows:
- For the obverse impression Our effigy with the inscription "- ELIZABETH II \cdot D \cdot G \cdot REG \cdot F \cdot D \cdot 25 POUNDS", and for the reverse a depiction of the figure of Britannia set against a Union flag and the inscription "BRITANNIA 1/4OZ 999.9 FINE GOLD" and the date "2020". The coin shall have a grained edge.

TEN POUND GOLD COIN

- 6. (1) A new coin of gold of the denomination of ten pounds shall be made, being a coin of a standard weight of 3.13 grammes, a standard diameter of 16.5 millimetres, a millesimal fineness of not less than 999.9, and being circular in shape.
- (2) In the making of the said gold coin a remedy (that is, a variation from the standard weight or diameter specified above) shall be allowed of an amount not exceeding the following, that is to say:
- (a) a variation from the said standard weight of an amount per coin of $0.02\ \mathrm{grammes}$; and
- (b) a variation from the said standard diameter of 0.125 millimetres per coin.
- (3) The least current weight of the said gold coin shall be 3.11 grammes.
- (4) The variation from the standard weight will be measured as the average of a sample of not more than one kilogram of the coin.
- (5) The design of the said gold coin shall be as follows:
- For the obverse impression Our effigy with the inscription "- ELIZABETH II \cdot D \cdot G \cdot REG \cdot F \cdot D \cdot 10 POUNDS", and for the reverse a depiction of the figure of Britannia set against a Union flag and the inscription "BRITANNIA 1/10OZ 999.9 FINE GOLD" and the date "2020". The coin shall have a grained edge.'

ONE POUND GOLD COIN

- 7. (1) A new coin of gold of the denomination of one pound shall be made, being a coin of a standard weight of 1.58 grammes, a standard diameter of 12 millimetres, a millesimal fineness of not less than 999.9, and being circular in shape.
- (2) In the making of the said gold coin a remedy (that is, a variation from the standard weight or diameter specified above) shall be allowed of an amount not exceeding the following, that is to say:
- (a) a variation from the said standard weight of an amount per coin of $0.02\ grammes$; and
- (b) a variation from the said standard diameter of 0.125 millimetres per coin.
- (3) The least current weight of the said gold coin shall be 1.56 grammes.
- (4) The variation from the standard weight will be measured as the average of a sample of not more than one kilogram of the coin.
- (5) The design of the said gold coin shall be as follows:
- For the obverse impression Our effigy with the inscription "- ELIZABETH II \cdot D \cdot G \cdot REG \cdot F \cdot D \cdot 1 POUND", and for the reverse a depiction of the figure of Britannia set against a Union flag and the inscription "BRITANNIA 1/20OZ 999.9 FINE GOLD" and the date "2020". The coin shall have a grained edge.

FIFTY PENCE GOLD COIN

8. (1) A new coin of gold of the denomination of fifty pence shall be made, being a coin of a standard weight of 0.8 grammes, a standard diameter of 8 millimetres, a millesimal fineness of not less than 999.9, and being circular in shape.

- (2) In the making of the said gold coin a remedy (that is, a variation from the standard weight or diameter specified above) shall be allowed of an amount not exceeding the following, that is to say:
- (a) a variation from the said standard weight of an amount per coin of 0.015 grammes; and
- (b) a variation from the said standard diameter of 0.125 millimetres per coin.
- (3) The least current weight of the said gold coin shall be 0.65 grammes.
- (4) The variation from the standard weight will be measured as the average of a sample of not more than one kilogram of the coin.
- (5) The design of the said gold coin shall be as follows:
- For the obverse impression Our effigy with the inscription "- ELIZABETH II \cdot D \cdot G \cdot REG \cdot F \cdot D \cdot 50 PENCE", and for the reverse a depiction of the figure of Britannia set against a Union flag and the inscription "BRITANNIA 1/40OZ 999.9 FINE GOLD" and the date "2020". The coin shall have a grained edge.

FIVE HUNDRED POUND SILVER COIN

- 9. (1) A new coin of silver of the denomination of five hundred pounds shall be made, being a coin of a standard weight of 1005 grammes, a standard diameter of 100 millimetres, a standard composition of not less than 999 parts per thousand fine silver, and being circular in shape.
- (2) In the making of the said silver coin a remedy (that is, a variation from the standard weight or diameter specified above) shall be allowed of an amount not exceeding the following, that is to say:
- (a) a variation from the said standard weight of an amount per coin of 5 grammes; and
- (b) a variation from the said standard diameter of 0.25 millimetres per
- (3) The variation from the standard weight will be measured by weighing each coin separately.
- (4) The design of the said silver coin shall be as follows:
- 'For the obverse impression Our effigy with the inscription "- ELIZABETH II \cdot D \cdot G \cdot REG \cdot F \cdot D \cdot 500 POUNDS", and for the reverse a depiction of the figure of Britannia set against a Union flag and the inscription "BRITANNIA KILO 999 FINE SILVER" and the date "2020". The coin shall have a grained edge.'
- (5) The said silver coin shall be legal tender for payment of any amount in any part of Our United Kingdom.

TEN POUND SILVER COIN

- 10. (1) A new coin of silver of the denomination of ten pounds shall be made, being a coin of a standard weight of 156.295 grammes, a standard diameter of 65 millimetres, a standard composition of not less than 999 parts per thousand fine silver, and being circular in shape.
- (2) In the making of the said silver coin a remedy (that is, a variation from the standard weight or diameter specified above) shall be allowed of an amount not exceeding the following, that is to say:
- (a) a variation from the said standard weight of an amount per coin of $0.85\ \mathrm{grammes}$; and
- (b) a variation from the said standard diameter of 0.125 millimetres per coin.
- (3) The variation from the standard weight will be measured as the average of a sample of not more than one kilogram of the coin.
- (4) The design of the said silver coin shall be as follows:
- 'For the obverse impression Our effigy with the inscription "- ELIZABETH II \cdot D \cdot G \cdot REG \cdot F \cdot D \cdot 10 POUNDS", and for the reverse a depiction of the figure of Britannia set against a Union flag and the inscription "BRITANNIA 5OZ 999 FINE SILVER" and the date "2020". The coin shall have a grained edge.'
- (5) The said silver coin shall be legal tender for payment of any amount in any part of Our United Kingdom.

TWO POUND SILVER COIN

- 11. (1) A new coin of silver of the denomination of two pounds shall be made, being a coin of a standard weight of 31.21 grammes, a standard diameter of 38.61 millimetres, a standard composition of not less than 999 parts per thousand fine silver, and being circular in shape.
- (2) In the making of the said silver coin a remedy (that is, a variation from the standard weight or diameter specified above) shall be allowed of an amount not exceeding the following, that is to say:
- (a) a variation from the said standard weight of an amount per coin of 0.15 grammes; and
- (b) a variation from the said standard diameter of 0.125 millimetres per coin.

- (3) The variation from the standard weight will be measured as the average of a sample of not more than one kilogram of the coin.
- (4) The design of the said silver coin shall be as follows:
- For the obverse impression Our effigy with the inscription "- ELIZABETH II \cdot D \cdot G \cdot REG \cdot F \cdot D \cdot 2 POUNDS", and for the reverse a depiction of the figure of Britannia set against a Union flag and the inscription "BRITANNIA 1OZ 999 FINE SILVER" and the date "2020". The coin shall have a grained edge.'
- (5) The said silver coin shall be legal tender for payment of any amount in any part of Our United Kingdom.

ONE POUND SILVER COIN

- 12. (1) A new coin of silver of the denomination of one pound shall be made, being a coin of a standard weight of 15.71 grammes, a standard diameter of 27 millimetres, a standard composition of not less than 999 parts per thousand fine silver, and being circular in shape.
- (2) In the making of the said silver coin a remedy (that is, a variation from the standard weight or diameter specified above) shall be allowed of an amount not exceeding the following, that is to say:
- (a) a variation from the said standard weight of an amount per coin of 0.16 grammes; and
- (b) a variation from the said standard diameter of 0.125 millimetres per coin.
- (3) The variation from the standard weight will be measured as the average of a sample of not more than one kilogram of the coin.
- (4) The design of the said silver coin shall be as follows:
- For the obverse impression Our effigy with the inscription "- ELIZABETH II \cdot D \cdot G \cdot REG \cdot F \cdot D \cdot 1 POUND", and for the reverse a depiction of the figure of Britannia set against a Union flag and the inscription "BRITANNIA 1/2OZ 999 FINE SILVER" and the date "2020". The coin shall have a grained edge.'
- (5) The said silver coin shall be legal tender for payment of any amount in any part of Our United Kingdom.

FIFTY PENCE SILVER COIN

- 13. (1) A new coin of silver of the denomination of fifty pence shall be made, being a coin of a standard weight of 7.86 grammes, a standard diameter of 22 millimetres, a standard composition of not less than 999 parts per thousand fine silver, and being circular in shape.
- (2) In the making of the said silver coin a remedy (that is, a variation from the standard weight or diameter specified above) shall be allowed of an amount not exceeding the following, that is to say:
- (a) a variation from the said standard weight of an amount per coin of 0.08 grammes; and
- (b) a variation from the said standard diameter of 0.125 millimetres per coin.
- (3) The variation from the standard weight will be measured as the average of a sample of not more than one kilogram of the coin.
- (4) The design of the said silver coin shall be as follows:
- For the obverse impression Our effigy with the inscription "- ELIZABETH II \cdot D \cdot G \cdot REG \cdot F \cdot D \cdot 50 PENCE", and for the reverse a depiction of the figure of Britannia set against a Union flag and the inscription "BRITANNIA 1/4OZ 999 FINE SILVER" and the date "2020". The coin shall have a grained edge.
- (5) The said silver coin shall be legal tender for payment of any amount in any part of Our United Kingdom.

TWENTY PENCE SILVER COIN

- 14. (1) A new coin of silver of the denomination of twenty pence shall be made, being a coin of a standard weight of 3.15 grammes, a standard diameter of 16.5 millimetres, a standard composition of not less than 999 parts per thousand fine silver, and being circular in shape.
- (2) In the making of the said silver coin a remedy (that is, a variation from the standard weight or diameter specified above) shall be allowed of an amount not exceeding the following, that is to say:
- (a) a variation from the said standard weight of an amount per coin of 0.035 grammes; and
- (b) a variation from the said standard diameter of 0.125 millimetres per coin.
- (3) The variation from the standard weight will be measured as the average of a sample of not more than one kilogram of the coin.
- (4) The design of the said silver coin shall be as follows:
- 'For the obverse impression Our effigy with the inscription "-ELIZABETH II \cdot D \cdot G \cdot REG \cdot F \cdot D \cdot 20 PENCE", and for the reverse a depiction of the figure of Britannia set against a Union flag and the inscription "BRITANNIA 1/10OZ 999 FINE SILVER" and the date "2020". The coin shall have a grained edge.'

(5) The said silver coin shall be legal tender for payment of any amount in any part of Our United Kingdom.

TEN PENCE SILVER COIN

- 15. (1) A new coin of silver of the denomination of ten pence shall be made, being a coin of a standard weight of 1.58 grammes, a standard diameter of 12 millimetres, a standard composition of not less than 999 parts per thousand fine silver, and being circular in shape.
- (2) In the making of the said silver coin a remedy (that is, a variation from the standard weight or diameter specified above) shall be allowed of an amount not exceeding the following, that is to say:
- (a) a variation from the said standard weight of an amount per coin of 0.025 grammes; and
- (b) a variation from the said standard diameter of 0.125 millimetres per coin
- (3) The variation from the standard weight will be measured as the average of a sample of not more than one kilogram of the coin.
- (4) The design of the said silver coin shall be as follows:
- For the obverse impression Our effigy with the inscription "- ELIZABETH II \cdot D \cdot G \cdot REG \cdot F \cdot D \cdot 10 PENCE", and for the reverse a depiction of the figure of Britannia set against a Union flag and the inscription "BRITANNIA 1/20OZ 999 FINE SILVER" and the date "2020". The coin shall have a grained edge.
- (5) The said silver coin shall be legal tender for payment of any amount in any part of Our United Kingdom.

FIVE PENCE SILVER COIN

- 16. (1) A new coin of silver of the denomination of five pence shall be made, being a coin of a standard weight of 0.8 grammes, a standard diameter of 8 millimetres, a standard composition of not less than 999 parts per thousand fine silver, and being circular in shape.
- (2) In the making of the said silver coin a remedy (that is, a variation from the standard weight or diameter specified above) shall be allowed of an amount not exceeding the following, that is to say:
- (a) a variation from the said standard weight of an amount per coin of 0.015 grammes; and
- (b) a variation from the said standard diameter of 0.125 millimetres per coin.
- (3) The variation from the standard weight will be measured as the average of a sample of not more than one kilogram of the coin.
- (4) The design of the said silver coin shall be as follows:
- 'For the obverse impression Our effigy with the inscription "- ELIZABETH II \cdot D \cdot G \cdot REG \cdot F \cdot D \cdot 5 PENCE", and for the reverse a depiction of the figure of Britannia set against a Union flag and the inscription "BRITANNIA 1/40OZ 999 FINE SILVER" and the date "2020". The coin shall have a grained edge.'
- (5) The said silver coin shall be legal tender for payment of any amount in any part of Our United Kingdom.

TWENTY-FIVE POUND PLATINUM COIN

- 17. (1) A new coin of platinum of the denomination of twenty-five pounds shall be made, being a coin of a standard weight of 7.846 grammes, a standard diameter of 20 millimetres and being circular in
- (2) In the making of the said platinum coin a remedy (that is, a variation from the standard weight or diameter specified above) shall be allowed of an amount not exceeding the following, that is to say:
- (a) a variation from the said standard weight of an amount per coin of 0.075 grammes; and
- (b) a variation from the said standard diameter of 0.125 millimetres per coin.
- (3) The said platinum coin may contain impurities of five-tenths of one per centum.
- (4) The variation from the standard weight will be measured as the average of a sample of not more than one kilogram of the coin.
- (5) The composition of the standard trial plates to be used for determining the justness of the said platinum coin shall be pure platinum.
- (6) The design of the said platinum coin shall be as follows:
- For the obverse impression Our effigy with the inscription "- ELIZABETH II · D · G · REG · F · D · 25 POUNDS", and for the reverse a depiction of the figure of Britannia set against a Union flag and the inscription "BRITANNIA 1/4OZ 999.5 PLATINUM" and the date "2020". The coin shall have a grained edge.
- (7) The said platinum coin shall be legal tender for payment of any amount in any part of Our United Kingdom.
- 18. This Proclamation shall come into force on the seventh day of November Two thousand and nineteen.

Given at Our Court at Buckingham Palace, this sixth day of November in the year of our Lord Two thousand and nineteen and in the sixty-eighth year of Our Reign.

GOD SAVE THE QUEEN

(3422059)

BY THE QUEEN A PROCLAMATION DETERMINING THE SPECIFICATIONS AND DESIGNS FOR A NEW SERIES OF FIFTY PENCE COINS IN GOLD, SILVER AND CUPRO-NICKEL ELIZABETH R.

Whereas under section 3(1)(a), (b), (c), (cc), (cd), (d) and (dd) of the Coinage Act 1971 We have power, with the advice of Our Privy Council, by Proclamation to determine the denomination, the design and dimensions of coins to be made at Our Mint, to determine the weight and fineness of certain gold coins, the remedy to be allowed in the making of such coins and their least current weight, and to determine the weight and composition of coins other than gold coins or coins of silver of Our Maundy money, and the remedy to be allowed in the making of such coins, to provide for the manner of measurement of the variation from the standard weight of coins, and to determine the percentage of impurities which such coins may contain:

And Whereas under section 3(1)(ff) of the Coinage Act 1971 We have power, with the advice of Our Privy Council, by Proclamation to direct that any coin shall be legal tender for the payment of any amount:

And Whereas it appears to Us desirable to order that there should be made at Our Mint a new series of coins of the denomination of fifty pence in gold, in silver and in cupro-nickel:

We, therefore, in pursuance of the said section 3(1)(a), (b), (c), (cc), (cd), (d), (dd) and (ff), and of all other powers enabling Us in that behalf, do hereby, by and with the advice of Our Privy Council, proclaim, direct and ordain as follows:

FIFTY PENCE GOLD COIN

- 1. (1) A new coin of gold of the denomination of fifty pence shall be made, being a coin of a standard weight of 15.5 grammes, a standard diameter of 27.3 millimetres, a millesimal fineness of 916.7, and being in the shape of an equilateral curve heptagon.
- (2) In the making of the said gold coin a remedy (that is, a variation from the standard weight, diameter or fineness specified above) shall be allowed of an amount not exceeding the following, that is to say:
- (a) a variation from the said standard weight of an amount per coin of 0.07 grammes;
- (b) a variation from the said standard diameter of 0.125 millimetres per coin; and
- (c) a variation from the said millesimal fineness of two per mille.
- (3) The least current weight of the said gold coin shall be 15.4 grammes.
- (4) The variation from the standard weight will be measured as the average of a sample of not more than one kilogram of the coin.

FIFTY PENCE SILVER COIN

- 2. (1) A new coin of silver of the denomination of fifty pence shall be made, being a coin of a standard weight of 8 grammes, a standard diameter of 27.3 millimetres, a standard composition of 925 parts per thousand fine silver, and being in the shape of an equilateral curve heptagon.
- (2) In the making of the said silver coin a remedy (that is, a variation from the standard weight, diameter or composition specified above) shall be allowed of an amount not exceeding the following, that is to say:
- (a) a variation from the said standard weight of an amount per coin of 0.17 grammes;
- (b) a variation from the said standard diameter of 0.125 millimetres per coin; and $\,$
- (c) a variation from the said standard composition of five parts per thousand fine silver.
- (3) The variation from the standard weight will be measured as the average of a sample of not more than one kilogram of the coin.
- (4) The said silver coin shall be legal tender for the payment of any amount not exceeding ten pounds in any part of Our United Kingdom.

FIFTY PENCE CUPRO-NICKEL COIN

3. (1) A new coin of cupro-nickel of the denomination of fifty pence shall be made, being a coin of a standard weight of 8 grammes, a standard diameter of 27.3 millimetres, a standard composition of seventy-five per centum copper and twenty-five per centum nickel, and being in the shape of an equilateral curve heptagon.

- (2) In the making of the said cupro-nickel coin a remedy (that is, a variation from the standard weight, diameter or composition specified above) shall be allowed of an amount not exceeding the following, that is to say:
- (a) a variation from the said standard weight of an amount per coin of 0.35 grammes;
- (b) a variation from the said standard diameter of 0.125 millimetres per coin; and
- (c) a variation from the said standard composition of two per centum copper and two per centum nickel.
- (3) The said cupro-nickel coin may contain impurities of three-quarters of one per centum.
- (4) The variation from the standard weight will be measured as the average of a sample of not more than one kilogram of the coin.
- (5) The said cupro-nickel coin shall be current and shall be legal tender for the payment of any amount not exceeding ten pounds in any part of Our United Kingdom.

DESIGNS OF THE COINS

4. (1) The designs of the said fifty pence gold, silver and cupro-nickel coins shall be as follows:

'For the obverse impression Our effigy with the inscription "· ELIZABETH II · D · G · REG · F · D · 50 PENCE ·" and the date of the vear and for the reverse either:

(a) a design depicting a Megalosaurus accompanied by the inscription "MEGALOSAURUS" and "BUCKLAND 1824"; or

(b) a design depicting an Iguanodon accompanied by the inscription "IGUANODON" and "MANTELL 1825"; or

(c) a design depicting a Hylaeosaurus accompanied by the inscription "HYLAEOSAURUS" and "MANTELL 1833".

The coins shall have a plain edge.'

5. This Proclamation shall come into force on the seventh day of November Two thousand and nineteen.

Given at Our Court at Buckingham Palace, this sixth day of November in the year of our Lord Two thousand and nineteen and in the sixty-eighth year of Our Reign.

GOD SAVE THE QUEEN

(3422060)

BY THE QUEEN A PROCLAMATION DETERMINING THE SPECIFICATIONS AND DESIGNS FOR A NEW SERIES OF TWENTY-FIVE POUND, TEN POUND AND FIVE POUND GOLD COINS; A NEW SERIES OF TEN POUND AND FIVE POUND STANDARD SILVER COINS; A NEW SERIES OF FIVE POUND SILVER PIEDFORT COINS; AND A NEW SERIES OF FIVE POUND CUPRO-NICKEL COINS ELIZABETH R.

Whereas under section 3(1)(a), (b), (c), (cc), (cd), (d) and (dd) of the Coinage Act 1971 We have power, with the advice of Our Privy Council, by Proclamation to determine the denomination, the design and dimensions of coins to be made at Our Mint, to determine the weight and fineness of certain gold coins, the remedy to be allowed in the making of such coins and their least current weight, and to determine the weight and composition of coins other than gold coins or coins of silver of Our Maundy money, and the remedy to be allowed in the making of such coins, to provide for the manner of measurement of the variation from the standard weight of coins, and to determine the percentage of impurities which such coins may contain:

And Whereas under section 3(1)(ff) of the Coinage Act 1971 We have power, with the advice of Our Privy Council, by Proclamation to direct that any coin shall be legal tender for the payment of any amount:

And Whereas it appears to Us desirable to order that there should be made at Our Mint a new series of coins of the denominations of twenty-five pounds, ten pounds and five pounds in gold, a new series of coins of the denominations of ten pounds and five pounds in standard silver, a new series of coins of the denomination of five pounds in silver piedfort, and a new series of coins of the denomination of five pounds in cupro-nickel:

We, therefore, in pursuance of the said section 3(1)(a), (b), (c), (cc), (cd), (d), (dd) and (ff), and of all other powers enabling Us in that behalf, do hereby, by and with the advice of Our Privy Council, proclaim, direct and ordain as follows:

TWENTY-FIVE POUND GOLD COIN

1. (1) A new coin of gold of the denomination of twenty-five pounds shall be made, being a coin of a standard weight of 7.798 grammes, a standard diameter of 22 millimetres, a millesimal fineness of not less than 999.9, and being circular in shape.

- (2) In the making of the said gold coin a remedy (that is, a variation from the standard weight or diameter specified above) shall be allowed of an amount not exceeding the following, that is to say:
- (a) a variation from the said standard weight of an amount per coin of 0.025 grammes; and
- (b) a variation from the said standard diameter of 0.125 millimetres per coin.
- (3) The least current weight of the said gold coin shall be 7.75 grammes.
- (4) The variation from the standard weight will be measured as the average of a sample of not more than one kilogram of the coin.
- (5) The design of the said gold coin shall be as follows:
- 'For the obverse impression Our effigy with the inscription "· ELIZABETH II · D · G · REG · F · D · 25 POUNDS · 2020", and for the reverse either:
- (a) a depiction of the Yeoman Warder's Mace and a Roman arch window accompanied by the inscription "TOWER OF LONDON"; or
- (b) a depiction of three heraldic lions coming through a Roman arch window accompanied by the inscription "TOWER OF LONDON"; or
- (c) a depiction of a crowned medieval penny set against a Roman arch window accompanied by the inscription "TOWER OF LONDON"; or
- (d) the inscription "MY \cdot LIBERTIE DENIED \cdot " set against a Roman arch window accompanied by the inscription "TOWER OF LONDON". The coin shall have a grained edge.'

TEN POUND GOLD COIN

- 2. (1) A new coin of gold of the denomination of ten pounds shall be made, being a coin of a standard weight of 156.295 grammes, a standard diameter of 50 millimetres, a millesimal fineness of not less than 999, and being circular in shape.
- (2) In the making of the said gold coin a remedy (that is, a variation from the standard weight or diameter specified above) shall be allowed of an amount not exceeding the following, that is to say:
- (a) a variation from the said standard weight of an amount per coin of 0.784 grammes; and
- (b) a variation from the said standard diameter of 0.125 millimetres per coin.
- (3) The least current weight of the said gold coin shall be 154.5 grammes.
- (4) The variation from the standard weight will be measured as the average of a sample of not more than one kilogram of the coin.
- (5) The design of the said gold coin shall be as follows:
- 'For the obverse impression Our effigy with the inscription "· ELIZABETH II · D · G · REG · F · D · 10 POUNDS · 2020", and for the reverse either:
- (a) a depiction of the Yeoman Warder's Mace and a Roman arch window accompanied by the inscription "TOWER OF LONDON"; or
- (b) a depiction of three heraldic lions coming through a Roman arch window accompanied by the inscription "TOWER OF LONDON"; or
- (c) a depiction of a crowned medieval penny set against a Roman arch window accompanied by the inscription "TOWER OF LONDON"; or
- (d) the inscription "MY \cdot LIBERTIE DENIED \cdot " set against a Roman arch window accompanied by the inscription "TOWER OF LONDON". The coin shall have a grained edge.'

FIVE POUND GOLD COIN

- 3. (1) A new coin of gold of the denomination of five pounds shall be made, being a coin of a standard diameter of 38.61 millimetres, and being circular in shape.
- (2) The variation from the standard weight will be measured as the average of a sample of not more than one kilogram of the coin.
- (3) The design of the said gold coin shall be as follows:
- 'For the obverse impression Our effigy with the inscription "- ELIZABETH II \cdot D \cdot G \cdot REG \cdot F \cdot D \cdot 5 POUNDS \cdot 2020", and for the reverse either:
- (a) a depiction of the Yeoman Warder's Mace and a Roman arch window accompanied by the inscription "TOWER OF LONDON". The coin shall have a plain edge and in incuse letters the inscription "THE WHITE TOWER"; or
- (b) a depiction of three heraldic lions coming through a Roman arch window accompanied by the inscription "TOWER OF LONDON". The coin shall have a plain edge and in incuse letters the inscription "THE ROYAL MENAGERIE": or
- (c) a depiction of a crowned medieval penny set against a Roman arch window accompanied by the inscription "TOWER OF LONDON". The coin shall have a plain edge and in incuse letters the inscription "THE ROYAL MINT"; or

(d) the inscription "MY \cdot LIBERTIE DENIED \cdot " set against a Roman arch window accompanied by the inscription "TOWER OF LONDON". The coin shall have a plain edge and in incuse letters the inscription "THE INFAMOUS PRISON".'

TEN POUND STANDARD SILVER COIN

- 4. (1) A new coin of silver of the denomination of ten pounds shall be made, being a coin of a standard weight of 156.295 grammes, a standard diameter of 65 millimetres, a standard composition of not less than 999 parts per thousand fine silver, and being circular in shape.
- (2) In the making of the said silver coin a remedy (that is, a variation from the standard weight or diameter specified above) shall be allowed of an amount not exceeding the following, that is to say:
- (a) a variation from the said standard weight of an amount per coin of 0.83 grammes; and
- (b) a variation from the said standard diameter of 0.125 millimetres per coin.
- (3) The variation from the standard weight will be measured as the average of a sample of not more than one kilogram of the coin.
- (4) The design of the said silver coin shall be as follows:
- For the obverse impression Our effigy with the inscription "- ELIZABETH II \cdot D \cdot G \cdot REG \cdot F \cdot D \cdot 10 POUNDS \cdot 2020", and for the reverse either:
- (a) a depiction of the Yeoman Warder's Mace and a Roman arch window accompanied by the inscription "TOWER OF LONDON"; or
- (b) a depiction of three heraldic lions coming through a Roman arch window accompanied by the inscription "TOWER OF LONDON"; or
- (c) a depiction of a crowned medieval penny set against a Roman arch window accompanied by the inscription "TOWER OF LONDON"; or
- (d) the inscription "MY \cdot LIBERTIE DENIED \cdot " set against a Roman arch window accompanied by the inscription "TOWER OF LONDON". The coin shall have a grained edge."
- (5) The said silver coin shall be legal tender for payment of any amount in any part of Our United Kingdom.

FIVE POUND STANDARD SILVER COIN

- 5. (1) A new coin of silver of the denomination of five pounds shall be made, being a coin of a standard weight of 28.28 grammes, a standard diameter of 38.61 millimetres, a standard composition of 925 parts per thousand fine silver, and being circular in shape.
- (2) In the making of the said silver coin a remedy (that is, a variation from the standard weight, composition or diameter specified above) shall be allowed of an amount not exceeding the following, that is to say:
- (a) a variation from the said standard weight of an amount per coin of 0.424 grammes;
- (b) a variation from the said standard composition of five parts per thousand fine silver; and
- (c) a variation from the said standard diameter of 0.125 millimetres per coin.
- (3) The variation from the standard weight will be measured as the average of a sample of not more than one kilogram of the coin.
- (4) The design of the said silver coin shall be as follows:
- 'For the obverse impression Our effigy with the inscription "- ELIZABETH II \cdot D \cdot G \cdot REG \cdot F \cdot D \cdot 5 POUNDS \cdot 2020", and for the reverse either:
- (a) a depiction of the Yeoman Warder's Mace and a Roman arch window accompanied by the inscription "TOWER OF LONDON". The coin shall have a plain edge and in incuse letters the inscription "THE WHITE TOWER; or
- (b) a depiction of three heraldic lions coming through a Roman arch window accompanied by the inscription "TOWER OF LONDON". The coin shall have a plain edge and in incuse letters the inscription "THE ROYAL MENAGERIE"; or
- (c) a depiction of a crowned medieval penny set against a Roman arch window accompanied by the inscription "TOWER OF LONDON". The coin shall have a plain edge and in incuse letters the inscription "THE ROYAL MINT"; or
- (d) the inscription "MY \cdot LIBERTIE DENIED \cdot " set against a Roman arch window accompanied by the inscription "TOWER OF LONDON". The coin shall have a plain edge and in incuse letters the inscription "THE INFAMOUS PRISON".'
- (5) The said silver coin shall be legal tender for the payment of any amount in any part of Our United Kingdom.

FIVE POUND SILVER PIEDFORT COIN

- 6. (1) A new coin of silver of the denomination of five pounds shall be made, being a coin of a standard weight of 56.56 grammes, a standard diameter of 38.61 millimetres, a standard composition of 925 parts per thousand fine silver, and being circular in shape.
- (2) In the making of the said silver coin a remedy (that is, a variation from the standard weight, composition or diameter specified above) shall be allowed of an amount not exceeding the following, that is to say:
- (a) a variation from the said standard weight of an amount per coin of 0.215 grammes:
- (b) a variation from the said standard composition of five parts per thousand fine silver; and
- (c) a variation from the said standard diameter of 0.125 millimetres per coin.
- (3) The variation from the standard weight will be measured as the average of a sample of not more than one kilogram of the coin.
- (4) The design of the said silver coin shall be as follows:
- 'For the obverse impression Our effigy with the inscription "- ELIZABETH II · D · G · REG · F · D · 5 POUNDS · 2020", and for the reverse either:
- (a) a depiction of the Yeoman Warder's Mace and a Roman arch window accompanied by the inscription "TOWER OF LONDON". The coin shall have a plain edge and in incuse letters the inscription "THE WHITE TOWER; or
- (b) a depiction of three heraldic lions coming through a Roman arch window accompanied by the inscription "TOWER OF LONDON". The coin shall have a plain edge and in incuse letters the inscription "THE ROYAL MENAGERIE"; or
- (c) a depiction of a crowned medieval penny set against a Roman arch window accompanied by the inscription "TOWER OF LONDON". The coin shall have a plain edge and in incuse letters the inscription "THE ROYAL MINT"; or
- (d) the inscription "MY \cdot LIBERTIE DENIED \cdot " set against a Roman arch window accompanied by the inscription "TOWER OF LONDON". The coin shall have a plain edge and in incuse letters the inscription "THE INFAMOUS PRISON".'
- (5) The said silver coin shall be legal tender for the payment of any amount in any part of Our United Kingdom.

FIVE POUND CUPRO-NICKEL COIN

- 7. (1) A new coin of cupro-nickel of the denomination of five pounds shall be made, being a coin of a standard weight of 28.28 grammes, a standard diameter of 38.61 millimetres, a standard composition of seventy-five per centum copper and twenty-five per centum nickel, and being circular in shape.
- (2) In the making of the said cupro-nickel coin a remedy (that is, a variation from the standard weight, composition or diameter specified above) shall be allowed of an amount not exceeding the following, that is to say:
- (a) a variation from the said standard weight of an amount per coin of 0.75 grammes;
- (b) a variation from the said standard composition of two per centum copper and two per centum nickel; and
- (c) a variation from the said standard diameter of 0.125 millimetres per coin.
- (3) The said cupro-nickel coin may contain impurities of three-quarters of one per centum.
- (4) The variation from the standard weight will be measured as the average of a sample of not more than one kilogram of the coin.
- (5) The design of the said cupro-nickel coin shall be as follows:
- 'For the obverse impression Our effigy with the inscription "· ELIZABETH II · D · G · REG · F · D · 5 POUNDS · 2020", and for the reverse either:
- (a) a depiction of the Yeoman Warder's Mace and a Roman arch window accompanied by the inscription "TOWER OF LONDON"; or
- (b) a depiction of three heraldic lions coming through a Roman arch window accompanied by the inscription "TOWER OF LONDON"; or
- (c) a depiction of a crowned medieval penny set against a Roman arch window accompanied by the inscription "TOWER OF LONDON"; or
- (d) the inscription "MY \cdot LIBERTIE DENIED \cdot " set against a Roman arch window accompanied by the inscription "TOWER OF LONDON". The coin shall have a grained edge.'
- (6) The said cupro-nickel coin shall be legal tender for the payment of any amount in any part of Our United Kingdom.
- 8. This Proclamation shall come into force on the seventh day of November Two thousand and nineteen.

Given at Our Court at Buckingham Palace, this sixth day of November in the year of our Lord Two thousand and nineteen and in the sixty-eighth year of Our Reign.

GOD SAVE THE QUEEN

(3422061)

BY THE QUEEN A PROCLAMATION DETERMINING THE SPECIFICATIONS AND DESIGNS FOR A NEW SERIES OF ONE HUNDRED POUND AND TWENTY-FIVE POUND GOLD COINS; A NEW SERIES OF TEN POUND, TWO POUND AND ONE POUND SILVER COINS; AND A NEW SERIES OF FIVE POUND CUPRONICKEL COINS ELIZABETH R.

Whereas under section 3(1)(a), (b), (c), (cc), (cd), (d) and (dd) of the Coinage Act 1971 We have power, with the advice of Our Privy Council, by Proclamation to determine the denomination, the design and dimensions of coins to be made at Our Mint, to determine the weight and fineness of certain gold coins, the remedy to be allowed in the making of such coins and the least current weight, and to determine the weight and composition of coins other than gold coins or coins of silver of Our Maundy money, and the remedy to be allowed in the making of such coins, to provide for the manner of measurement of the variation from the standard weight of coins, and to determine the percentage of impurities which such coins may contain:

And Whereas under section 3(1)(ff) of the Coinage Act 1971 We have power, with the advice of Our Privy Council, by Proclamation to direct that any coin shall be legal tender for the payment of any amount:

And Whereas it appears to Us desirable to order that there should be made at Our Mint a new series of coins of the denominations of one hundred pounds and twenty-five pounds in gold, a new series of coins of the denominations of ten pounds, two pounds and one pound in silver, and a new series of coins of the denomination of five pounds in cupro-nickel:

We, therefore, in pursuance of the said section 3(1)(a), (b), (c), (cc), (cd), (d), (dd) and (ff), and of all other powers enabling Us in that behalf, do hereby, by and with the advice of Our Privy Council, proclaim, direct and ordain as follows:

ONE HUNDRED POUND GOLD COIN

- 1. (1) A new coin of gold of the denomination of one hundred pounds shall be made, being a coin of a standard weight of 31.21 grammes, a standard diameter of 32.69 millimetres, a millesimal fineness of not less than 999.9, and being circular in shape.
- (2) In the making of the said gold coin a remedy (that is, a variation from the standard weight or diameter, specified above) shall be allowed of an amount not exceeding the following, that is to say:
- (a) a variation from the said standard weight of an amount per coin of 0.15 grammes; and
- (b) a variation from the said standard diameter of 0.125 millimetres per coin.
- (3) The least current weight of the said gold coin shall be 31.01 grammes.
- (4) The variation from the standard weight will be measured as the average of a sample of not more than one kilogram of the coin.
- (5) The design of the said gold coin shall be as follows:
- 'For the obverse impression Our effigy with the inscription "- ELIZABETH II \cdot D \cdot G \cdot REG \cdot F \cdot D \cdot 100 POUNDS" and the date of the year, and for the reverse a keyboard, drum, bass and electric guitar accompanied by a microphone and the inscription "QUEEN". The coin shall have a grained edge.'

TWENTY-FIVE POUND GOLD COIN

- 2. (1) A new coin of gold of the denomination of twenty-five pounds shall be made, being a coin of a standard weight of 7.8 grammes, a standard diameter of 22 millimetres, a millesimal fineness of not less than 999.9, and being circular in shape.
- (2) In the making of the said gold coin a remedy (that is, a variation from the standard weight or diameter specified above) shall be allowed of an amount not exceeding the following, that is to say:
- (a) a variation from the said standard weight of an amount per coin of 0.025 grammes; and
- (b) a variation from the said standard diameter of 0.125 millimetres per coin.
- (3) The least current weight of the said gold coin shall be 7.75 grammes.
- (4) The variation from the standard weight will be measured as the average of a sample of not more than one kilogram of the coin.
- (5) The design of the said gold coin shall be as follows:

For the obverse impression Our effigy with the inscription "- ELIZABETH II \cdot D \cdot G \cdot REG \cdot F \cdot D \cdot 25 POUNDS" and the date of the year, and for the reverse a keyboard, drum, bass and electric guitar accompanied by a microphone and the inscription "QUEEN". The coin shall have a grained edge.'

TEN POUND SILVER COIN

- 3. (1) A new coin of silver of the denomination of ten pounds shall be made, being a coin of a standard weight of 311.527 grammes, a standard diameter of 89 millimetres, a standard composition of not less than 999 parts per thousand fine silver, and being circular in shape.
- (2) In the making of the said silver coin a remedy (that is, a variation from the standard weight or diameter specified above) shall be allowed of an amount not exceeding the following, that is to say:
- (a) a variation from the said standard weight of an amount per coin of 0.48 grammes; and
- (b) a variation from the said standard diameter of 0.25 millimetres per coin.
- (3) The variation from the standard weight will be measured as the average of a sample of not more than one kilogram of the coin.
- (4) The design of the said silver coin shall be as follows:
- For the obverse impression Our effigy with the inscription "- ELIZABETH II \cdot D \cdot G \cdot REG \cdot F \cdot D \cdot 10 POUNDS" and the date of the year, and for the reverse a keyboard, drum, bass and electric guitar accompanied by a microphone and the inscription "QUEEN". The coin shall have a grained edge.'
- (5) The said silver coin shall be legal tender for payment of any amount in any part of Our United Kingdom.

TWO POUND SILVER COIN

- 4. (1) A new coin of silver of the denomination of two pounds shall be made, being a coin of a standard weight of 31.21 grammes, a standard diameter of 38.61 millimetres, a standard composition of not less than 999 parts per thousand fine silver, and being circular in shape.
- (2) In the making of the said silver coin a remedy (that is, a variation from the standard weight or diameter specified above) shall be allowed of an amount not exceeding the following, that is to say:
- (a) a variation from the said standard weight of an amount per coin of 0.15 grammes; and
- (b) a variation from the said standard diameter of 0.125 millimetres per coin.
- (3) The variation from the standard weight will be measured as the average of a sample of not more than one kilogram of the coin.
- (4) The design of the said silver coin shall be as follows:
- 'For the obverse impression Our effigy with the inscription "- ELIZABETH II · D · G · REG · F · D · 2 POUNDS" and the date of the year, and for the reverse a keyboard, drum, bass and electric guitar accompanied by a microphone and the inscription "QUEEN". The coin shall have a plain edge and in incuse letters the inscription "MERCURY · MAY · TAYLOR · DEACON ·".'
- (5) The said silver coin shall be legal tender for payment of any amount in any part of Our United Kingdom.

TWO POUND BULLION SILVER COIN

- 5. (1) A new coin of silver of the denomination of two pounds shall be made, being a coin of a standard weight of 31.21 grammes, a standard diameter of 38.61 millimetres, a standard composition of not less than 999 parts per thousand fine silver, and being circular in shape.
- (2) In the making of the said silver coin a remedy (that is, a variation from the standard weight or diameter specified above) shall be allowed of an amount not exceeding the following, that is to say:
- (a) a variation from the said standard weight of an amount per coin of 0.15 grammes; and $\,$
- (b) a variation from the said standard diameter of 0.125 millimetres per coin.
- (3) The variation from the standard weight will be measured as the average of a sample of not more than one kilogram of the coin.
- (4) The design of the said silver coin shall be as follows:
- 'For the obverse impression Our effigy with the inscription "- ELIZABETH II · D · G · REG · F · D · 2 POUNDS" and the date of the year, and for the reverse a keyboard, drum, bass and electric guitar accompanied by a microphone and the inscription "QUEEN". The coin shall have a grained edge.'
- (5) The said silver coin shall be legal tender for payment of any amount in any part of Our United Kingdom.

ONE POUND SILVER COIN

- 6. (1) A new coin of silver of the denomination of one pound shall be made, being a coin of a standard weight of 15.71 grammes, a standard diameter of 27 millimetres, a standard composition of not less than 999 parts per thousand fine silver, and being circular in shape.
- (2) In the making of the said silver coin a remedy (that is, a variation from the standard weight or diameter specified above) shall be allowed of an amount not exceeding the following, that is to say:
- (a) a variation from the said standard weight of an amount per coin of 0.160 grammes; and
- (b) a variation from the said standard diameter of 0.125 millimetres per coin.
- (3) The variation from the standard weight will be measured as the average of a sample of not more than one kilogram of the coin.
- (4) The design of the said silver coin shall be as follows:
- 'For the obverse impression Our effigy with the inscription "- ELIZABETH II \cdot D \cdot G \cdot REG \cdot F \cdot D \cdot 1 POUND" and the date of the year, and for the reverse a keyboard, drum, bass and electric guitar accompanied by a microphone and the inscription "QUEEN". The coin shall have a grained edge.'
- (5) The said silver coin shall be legal tender for payment of any amount in any part of Our United Kingdom.

FIVE POUND CUPRO-NICKEL COIN

- 7. (1) A new coin of cupro-nickel of the denomination of five pounds shall be made, being a coin of a standard weight of 28.28 grammes, a standard diameter of 38.61 millimetres, a standard composition of seventy-five per centum copper and twenty-five per centum nickel, and being circular in shape.
- (2) In the making of the said cupro-nickel coin a remedy (that is, a variation from the standard weight, composition or diameter specified above) shall be allowed of an amount not exceeding the following, that is to say:
- (a) a variation from the said standard weight of an amount per coin of 0.75 grammes:
- (b) a variation from the said standard diameter of 0.125 millimetres per coin; and
- (c) a variation from the said standard composition of two per centum copper and two per centum nickel.
- (3) The said cupro-nickel coin may contain impurities of three-quarters of one per centum.
- (4) The variation from the standard weight will be measured as the average of a sample of not more than one kilogram of the coin.
- (5) The design of the said cupro-nickel coin shall be as follows:
- 'For the obverse impression Our effigy with the inscription "ELIZABETH II \cdot D \cdot G \cdot REG \cdot F \cdot D \cdot 5 POUNDS" and the date of the year, and for the reverse a keyboard, drum, bass and electric guitar accompanied by a microphone and the inscription "QUEEN". The coin shall have a grained edge.'
- (6) The said cupro-nickel coin shall be legal tender for the payment of any amount in any part of Our United Kingdom.
- 8. This Proclamation shall come into force on the seventh day of November Two thousand and nineteen.
- Given at Our Court at Buckingham Palace, this sixth day of November in the year of our Lord Two thousand and nineteen and in the sixty-eighth year of Our Reign.

GOD SAVE THE QUEEN

(3422062)

BY THE QUEEN A PROCLAMATION DETERMINING THE SPECIFICATIONS AND DESIGNS FOR A NEW SERIES OF ONE THOUSAND POUND, FIVE HUNDRED POUND, ONE HUNDRED POUND AND TWENTY-FIVE POUND GOLD COINS; A NEW SERIES OF FIVE HUNDRED POUND, TEN POUND, FIVE POUND AND TWO POUND STANDARD SILVER COINS; A NEW SERIES OF TEN POUND SILVER PIEDFORT COINS; A NEW SERIES OF ONE HUNDRED POUND PLATINUM COINS; AND A NEW SERIES OF FIVE POUND CUPRO-NICKEL COINS ELIZABETH R.

Whereas under section 3(1)(a), (b), (c), (cc), (cd), (d) and (dd) of the Coinage Act 1971 We have power, with the advice of Our Privy Council, by Proclamation to determine the denomination, the design and dimensions of coins to be made at Our Mint, to determine the weight and fineness of certain gold coins, the remedy to be allowed in the making of such coins and their least current weight, and to determine the weight and composition of coins other than gold coins

or coins of silver of Our Maundy money, and the remedy to be allowed in the making of such coins, to provide for the manner of measurement of the variation from the standard weight of coins, and to determine the percentage of impurities which such coins may contain:

And Whereas under section 3(1)(f) and (ff) of the Coinage Act 1971 We have power, with the advice of Our Privy Council, by Proclamation to direct that coins made at Our Mint other than gold, silver, cupro-nickel and bronze coins shall be current and that any coin shall be legal tender for the payment of any amount:

And Whereas under section 6(2) of the Coinage Act 1971 We have power, with the advice of Our Privy Council, by Proclamation to prescribe the composition of the standard trial plates to be used for determining the justness of coins of any metal other than gold, silver or cupro-nickel:

And Whereas it appears to Us desirable to order that there should be made at Our Mint a new series of coins of the denominations of one thousand pounds, five hundred pounds, one hundred pounds and twenty-five pounds in gold, a new series of coins of the denominations of five hundred pounds, ten pounds, five pounds and two pounds in standard silver, a new series of coins of the denomination of ten pounds in silver piedfort, a new series of coins of the denomination of one hundred pounds in platinum, and a new series of coins of the denomination of five pounds in cupro-nickel:

We, therefore, in pursuance of the said section 3(1)(a), (b), (c), (cc), (cd), (d), (dd), (f) and (ff), the said section 6(2), and of all other powers enabling Us in that behalf, do hereby, by and with the advice of Our Privy Council, proclaim, direct and ordain as follows:

ONE THOUSAND POUND GOLD COIN

- 1. (1) A new coin of gold of the denomination of one thousand pounds shall be made, being a coin of a standard weight of 1005 grammes, a standard diameter of 100 millimetres, a millesimal fineness of not less than 999, and being circular in shape.
- (2) In the making of the said gold coin a remedy (that is, a variation from the standard weight or diameter specified above) shall be allowed of an amount not exceeding the following, that is to say:
- (a) a variation from the said standard weight of an amount per coin of 5 grammes; and
- (b) a variation from the said standard diameter of 0.25 millimetres per coin.
- (3) The least current weight of the said gold coin shall be 995 grammes.
- (4) The variation from the standard weight will be measured by weighing each coin separately.
- (5) The design of the said gold coin shall be as follows:
- 'For the obverse impression Our effigy with the inscription "· ELIZABETH II \cdot D \cdot G \cdot REG \cdot F \cdot D \cdot 1000 POUNDS", and for the reverse a depiction of a rearing horse with the badge of the House of Hanover accompanied by the inscription "· WHITE HORSE OF HANOVER \cdot " and the date of the year. The coin shall have a grained edge.'

FIVE HUNDRED POUND GOLD COIN

- 2. (1) A new coin of gold of the denomination of five hundred pounds shall be made, being a coin of a standard weight of 156.295 grammes, a standard diameter of 50 millimetres, a millesimal fineness of not less than 999.9, and being circular in shape.
- (2) In the making of the said gold coin a remedy (that is, a variation from the standard weight or diameter specified above) shall be allowed of an amount not exceeding the following, that is to say:
- (a) a variation from the said standard weight of an amount per coin of 0.8 grammes; and
- (b) a variation from the said standard diameter of 0.125 millimetres per coin.
- (3) The least current weight of the said gold coin shall be 154.5 grammes.
- (4) The variation from the standard weight will be measured as the average of a sample of not more than one kilogram of the coin.
- (5) The design of the said gold coin shall be as follows:
- 'For the obverse impression Our effigy with the inscription "· ELIZABETH II \cdot D \cdot G \cdot REG \cdot F \cdot D \cdot 500 POUNDS", and for the reverse a depiction of a rearing horse with the badge of the House of Hanover accompanied by the inscription "· WHITE HORSE OF HANOVER \cdot " and the date of the year. The coin shall have a grained edge.'

ONE HUNDRED POUND GOLD COIN

- 3. (1) A new coin of gold of the denomination of one hundred pounds shall be made, being a coin of a standard weight of 31.21 grammes, a standard diameter of 32.69 millimetres, a millesimal fineness of not less than 999.9, and being circular in shape.
- (2) In the making of the said gold coin a remedy (that is, a variation from the standard weight or diameter specified above) shall be allowed of an amount not exceeding the following, that is to say:
- (a) a variation from the said standard weight of an amount per coin of 0.15 grammes; and
- (b) a variation from the said standard diameter of 0.125 millimetres per coin.
- (3) The least current weight of the said gold coin shall be 31.01 grammes.
- (4) The variation from the standard weight will be measured as the average of a sample of not more than one kilogram of the coin.
- (5) The design of the said gold coin shall be as follows:
- 'For the obverse impression Our effigy with the inscription "- ELIZABETH II \cdot D \cdot G \cdot REG \cdot F \cdot D \cdot 100 POUNDS", and for the reverse either:
- (a) a depiction of a rearing horse with the badge of the House of Hanover accompanied by the inscription " \cdot WHITE HORSE OF HANOVER \cdot " and the date of the year; or
- (b) a depiction of a rearing horse with the badge of the House of Hanover accompanied by the inscription "WHITE HORSE OF HANOVER 10Z \cdot FINE GOLD \cdot 999.9 \cdot " and the date of the year.

The coin shall have a grained edge.'

TWENTY-FIVE POUND GOLD COIN

- 4. (1) A new coin of gold of the denomination of twenty-five pounds shall be made, being a coin of a standard weight of 7.8 grammes, a standard diameter of 22 millimetres, a millesimal fineness of not less than 999.9, and being circular in shape.
- (2) In the making of the said gold coin a remedy (that is, a variation from the standard weight or diameter specified above) shall be allowed of an amount not exceeding the following, that is to say:
- (a) a variation from the said standard weight of an amount per coin of 0.025 grammes; and
- (b) a variation from the said standard diameter of 0.125 millimetres per coin.
- (3) The least current weight of the said gold coin shall be 7.75 grammes.
- (4) The variation from the standard weight will be measured as the average of a sample of not more than one kilogram of the coin.
- (5) The design of the said gold coin shall be as follows:
- 'For the obverse impression Our effigy with the inscription "- ELIZABETH II \cdot D \cdot G \cdot REG \cdot F \cdot D \cdot 25 POUNDS", and for the reverse either:
- (a) a depiction of a rearing horse with the badge of the House of Hanover accompanied by the inscription " \cdot WHITE HORSE OF HANOVER \cdot " and the date of the year; or
- (b) a depiction of a rearing horse with the badge of the House of Hanover accompanied by the inscription "WHITE HORSE OF HANOVER $1/40Z \cdot FINE\ GOLD \cdot 999.9 \cdot$ " and the date of the year. The coin shall have a grained edge.'

FIVE HUNDRED POUND STANDARD SILVER COIN

- 5. (1) A new coin of silver of the denomination of five hundred pounds shall be made, being a coin of a standard weight of 1005 grammes, a standard diameter of 100 millimetres, a standard composition of not less than 999 parts per thousand fine silver, and being circular in shape.
- (2) In the making of the said silver coin a remedy (that is, a variation from the standard weight or diameter specified above) shall be allowed of an amount not exceeding the following, that is to say:
- (a) a variation from the said standard weight of an amount per coin of 5 grammes; and
- (b) a variation from the said standard diameter of 0.25 millimetres per coin.
- (3) The variation from the standard weight will be measured by weighing each coin separately.
- (4) The design of the said silver coin shall be as follows:
- 'For the obverse impression Our effigy with the inscription "- ELIZABETH II \cdot D \cdot G \cdot REG \cdot F \cdot D \cdot 500 POUNDS", and for the reverse a depiction of a rearing horse with the badge of the House of Hanover accompanied by the inscription "- WHITE HORSE OF HANOVER \cdot " and the date of the year. The coin shall have a grained edge.'
- (5) The said silver coin shall be legal tender for payment of any amount in any part of Our United Kingdom.

TEN POUND STANDARD SILVER COIN

- 6. (1) A new coin of silver of the denomination of ten pounds shall be made, being a coin of a standard weight of 311.527 grammes, a standard diameter of 89 millimetres, a standard composition of not less than 999.9 parts per thousand fine silver, and being circular in shape.
- (2) In the making of the said silver coin a remedy (that is, a variation from the standard weight or diameter specified above) shall be allowed of an amount not exceeding the following, that is to say:
- (a) a variation from the said standard weight of an amount per coin of 0.48 grammes; and
- (b) a variation from the said standard diameter of 0.25 millimetres per coin.
- (3) The variation from the standard weight will be measured as the average of a sample of not more than one kilogram of the coin.
- (4) The design of the said silver coin shall be as follows:
- For the obverse impression Our effigy with the inscription "- ELIZABETH II · D · G · REG · F · D · 10 POUNDS", and for the reverse a depiction of a rearing horse with the badge of the House of Hanover accompanied by the inscription " WHITE HORSE OF HANOVER 10OZ · FINE SILVER · 999.9 ·" and the date of the year. The coin shall have a grained edge.'
- (5) The said silver coin shall be legal tender for payment of any amount in any part of Our United Kingdom.

TEN POUND STANDARD SILVER COIN

- 7. (1) A new coin of silver of the denomination of ten pounds shall be made, being a coin of a standard weight of 156.295 grammes, a standard diameter of 65 millimetres, a standard composition of not less than 999 parts per thousand fine silver, and being circular in shape.
- (2) In the making of the said silver coin a remedy (that is, a variation from the standard weight or diameter specified above) shall be allowed of an amount not exceeding the following, that is to say:
- (a) a variation from the said standard weight of an amount per coin of 0.85 grammes; and
- (b) a variation from the said standard diameter of 0.125 millimetres per coin.
- (3) The variation from the standard weight will be measured as the average of a sample of not more than one kilogram of the coin.
- (4) The design of the said silver coin shall be as follows:
- For the obverse impression Our effigy with the inscription "- ELIZABETH II · D · G · REG · F · D · 10 POUNDS", and for the reverse a depiction of a rearing horse with the badge of the House of Hanover accompanied by the inscription "- WHITE HORSE OF HANOVER ·" and the date of the year. The coin shall have a grained edge.'
- (5) The said silver coin shall be legal tender for payment of any amount in any part of Our United Kingdom.

FIVE POUND STANDARD SILVER COIN

- 8. (1) A new coin of silver of the denomination of five pounds shall be made, being a coin of a standard weight of 62.42 grammes, a standard diameter of 38.61 millimetres, a standard composition of not less than 999.9 parts per thousand fine silver, and being circular in shape.
- (2) In the making of the said silver coin a remedy (that is, a variation from the standard weight or diameter specified above) shall be allowed of an amount not exceeding the following, that is to say:
- (a) a variation from the said standard weight of an amount per coin of 0.195 grammes; and
- (b) a variation from the said standard diameter of 0.125 millimetres per coin.
- (3) The variation from the standard weight will be measured as the average of a sample of not more than one kilogram of coin.
- (4) The design of the said silver coin shall be as follows:
- For the obverse impression Our effigy with the inscription "- ELIZABETH II · D · G · REG · F · D · 5 POUNDS", and for the reverse a depiction of a rearing horse with the badge of the House of Hanover accompanied by the inscription "WHITE HORSE OF HANOVER 2OZ · FINE SILVER · 999.9 ·" and the date of the year. The coin shall have a grained edge.'
- (5) The said silver coin shall be legal tender for payment of any amount in any part of Our United Kingdom.

TWO POUND STANDARD SILVER COIN

9. (1) A new coin of silver of the denomination of two pounds shall be made, being a coin of a standard weight of 31.21 grammes, a standard diameter of 38.61 millimetres, a standard composition of not less than 999 parts per thousand fine silver, and being circular in shape.

- (2) In the making of the said silver coin a remedy (that is, a variation from the standard weight or diameter specified above) shall be allowed of an amount not exceeding the following, that is to say:
- (a) a variation from the said standard weight of an amount per coin of 0.15 grammes; and
- (b) a variation from the said standard diameter of 0.125 millimetres per coin.
- (3) The variation from the standard weight will be measured as the average of a sample of not more than one kilogram of the coin.
- (4) The design of the said silver coin shall be as follows:
- 'For the obverse impression Our effigy with the inscription "- ELIZABETH II \cdot D \cdot G \cdot REG \cdot F \cdot D \cdot 2 POUNDS", and for the reverse a depiction of a rearing horse with the badge of the House of Hanover accompanied by the inscription "- WHITE HORSE OF HANOVER \cdot " and the date of the year. The coin shall have a grained edge.'
- (5) The said silver coin shall be legal tender for payment of any amount in any part of Our United Kingdom.

TEN POUND SILVER PIEDFORT COIN

- 10. (1) A new coin of silver of the denomination of ten pounds shall be made, being a coin of a standard weight of 312.59 grammes, a standard diameter of 65 millimetres, a standard composition of not less than 999 parts per thousand fine silver, and being circular in shape.
- (2) In the making of the said silver coin a remedy (that is, a variation from the standard weight or diameter specified above) shall be allowed of an amount not exceeding the following, that is to say:
- (a) a variation from the said standard weight of an amount per coin of 1.75 grammes; and
- (b) a variation from the said standard diameter of 0.125 millimetres per
- (3) The variation from the standard weight will be measured as the average of a sample of not more than one kilogram of the coin.
- (4) The design of the said silver coin shall be as follows:
- 'For the obverse impression Our effigy with the inscription "- ELIZABETH II \cdot D \cdot G \cdot REG \cdot F \cdot D \cdot 10 POUNDS", and for the reverse a depiction of a rearing horse with the badge of the House of Hanover accompanied by the inscription "- WHITE HORSE OF HANOVER \cdot " and the date of the year. The coin shall have a grained edge.'
- (5) The said silver coin shall be legal tender for payment of any amount in any part of Our United Kingdom.

ONE HUNDRED POUND PLATINUM COIN

- 11. (1) A new coin of platinum of the denomination of one hundred pounds shall be made, being a coin of a standard weight of 31.21 grammes, a standard diameter of 32.69 millimetres and being circular in shape.
- (2) In the making of the said platinum coin a remedy (that is, a variation from the standard weight or diameter specified above) shall be allowed of an amount not exceeding the following, that is to say:
- (a) a variation from the said standard weight of an amount per coin of 0.15 grammes; and
- (b) a variation from the said standard diameter of 0.125 millimetres per coin.
- (3) The said platinum coin may contain impurities of five-tenths of one per centum.
- (4) The variation from the standard weight will be measured as the average of a sample of not more than one kilogram of the coin.
- (5) The composition of the standard trial plates to be used for determining the justness of the said platinum coin shall be pure platinum.
- (6) The design of the said platinum coin shall be as follows:
- For the obverse impression Our effigy with the inscription "- ELIZABETH II \cdot D \cdot G \cdot REG \cdot F \cdot D \cdot 100 POUNDS", and for the reverse a depiction of a rearing horse with the badge of the House of Hanover accompanied by the inscription "WHITE HORSE OF HANOVER 10Z \cdot FINE PLATINUM \cdot 999.5 \cdot " and the date of the year. The coin shall have a grained edge.
- (7) The said platinum coin shall be legal tender for payment of any amount in any part of Our United Kingdom.

FIVE POUND CUPRO-NICKEL COIN

12. (1) A new coin of cupro-nickel of the denomination of five pounds shall be made, being a coin of a standard weight of 28.28 grammes, a standard diameter of 38.61 millimetres, a standard composition of seventy-five per centum copper and twenty-five per centum nickel, and being circular in shape.

- (2) In the making of the said cupro-nickel coin a remedy (that is, a variation from the standard weight, diameter or composition specified above) shall be allowed of an amount not exceeding the following, that is to say:
- (a) a variation from the said standard weight of an amount per coin of 0.75 grammes;
- (b) a variation from the said standard diameter of 0.125 millimetres per coin; and
- (c) a variation from the said standard composition of two per centum copper and two per centum nickel.
- (3) The said cupro-nickel coin may contain impurities of three-quarters of one per centum.
- (4) The variation from the standard weight will be measured as the average of a sample of not more than one kilogram of the coin.
- (5) The design of the said cupro-nickel coin shall be as follows:
- For the obverse impression Our effigy with the inscription "- ELIZABETH II \cdot D \cdot G \cdot REG \cdot FID \cdot DEF \cdot 5 POUNDS", and for the reverse a depiction of a rearing horse with the badge of the House of Hanover accompanied by the inscription "- WHITE HORSE OF HANOVER \cdot " and the date of the year. The coin shall have a grained edge.
- (6) The said cupro-nickel coin shall be legal tender for payment of any amount in any part of Our United Kingdom.
- 13. This Proclamation shall come into force on the seventh day of November Two thousand and nineteen.
- Given at Our Court at Buckingham Palace, this sixth day of November in the year of Our Lord Two thousand and nineteen and in the sixty-eighth year of Our Reign.

GOD SAVE THE QUEEN

(3422063)

BY THE QUEEN A PROCLAMATION DETERMINING THE SPECIFICATIONS AND DESIGNS FOR A NEW SERIES OF SEVEN THOUSAND POUND, TWO THOUSAND POUND, ONE THOUSAND POUND AND FIVE HUNDRED POUND GOLD COINS; AND A NEW SERIES OF ONE THOUSAND POUND, FIVE HUNDRED POUND AND TEN POUND SILVER COINS ELIZABETH R.

Whereas under section 3(1)(a), (b), (c), (cc), (cd) and (d) of the Coinage Act 1971 We have power, with the advice of Our Privy Council, by Proclamation to determine the denomination, the design and dimensions of coins to be made at Our Mint, to determine the weight and fineness of certain gold coins, the remedy to be allowed in the making of such coins and the least current weight, and to determine the weight and composition of coins other than gold coins or coins of silver of Our Maundy money, and the remedy to be allowed in the making of such coins, and to provide for the manner of measurement of the variation from the standard weight of coins:

And Whereas under section 3(1)(ff) of the Coinage Act 1971 We have power, with the advice of Our Privy Council, by Proclamation to direct that any coin shall be legal tender for the payment of any amount:

And Whereas it appears to Us desirable to order that there should be made at Our Mint a new series of coins of the denominations of seven thousand pounds, two thousand pounds, one thousand pounds and five hundred pounds in gold, and a new series of coins of the denominations of one thousand pounds, five hundred pounds and ten pounds in silver:

We, therefore, in pursuance of the said section 3(1)(a), (b), (c), (cc), (cd), (d) and (ff), and of all other powers enabling Us in that behalf, do hereby, by and with the advice of Our Privy Council, proclaim, direct and ordain as follows:

SEVEN THOUSAND POUND GOLD COIN

- 1. (1) A new coin of gold of the denomination of seven thousand pounds shall be made, being a coin of a standard weight of 7035 grammes, a standard diameter of 185 millimetres, a millesimal fineness of not less than 999, and being circular in shape.
- (2) In the making of the said gold coin a remedy (that is, a variation from the standard weight or diameter specified above) shall be allowed of an amount not exceeding the following, that is to say:
- (a) a variation from the said standard weight of an amount per coin of $35\ \mathrm{grammes};$ and
- (b) a variation from the said standard diameter of 0.5 millimetres per coin.
- (3) The least current weight of the said gold coin shall be 6940 grammes.
- (4) The variation from the standard weight will be measured by weighing each coin separately.
- (5) The design of the said gold coin shall be as follows:

'For the obverse impression Our effigy with the inscription "- ELIZABETH II \cdot D \cdot G \cdot REG \cdot F \cdot D \cdot 7000 POUNDS \cdot 2020", and for the reverse a depiction of James Bond's car accompanied by the 007 logo. The coin shall have a plain edge.'

TWO THOUSAND POUND GOLD COIN

- 2. (1) A new coin of gold of the denomination of two thousand pounds shall be made, being a coin of a standard weight of 2010 grammes, a standard diameter of 150 millimetres, a millesimal fineness of not less than 999, and being circular in shape.
- (2) In the making of the said gold coin a remedy (that is, a variation from the standard weight or diameter specified above) shall be allowed of an amount not exceeding the following, that is to say:
- (a) a variation from the said standard weight of an amount per coin of 9.99 grammes; and
- (b) a variation from the said standard diameter of 0.5 millimetres per coin.
- (3) The least current weight of the said gold coin shall be 1990 grammes.
- (4) The variation from the standard weight will be measured by weighing each coin separately.
- (5) The design of the said gold coin shall be as follows:
- 'For the obverse impression Our effigy with the inscription "- ELIZABETH II \cdot D \cdot G \cdot REG \cdot F \cdot D \cdot 2000 POUNDS \cdot 2020", and for the reverse a depiction of James Bond's car accompanied by the 007 logo. The coin shall have a grained edge.'

ONE THOUSAND POUND GOLD COIN

- 3. (1) A new coin of gold of the denomination of one thousand pounds shall be made, being a coin of a standard weight of 1005 grammes, a standard diameter of 100 millimetres, a millesimal fineness of not less than 999, and being circular in shape.
- (2) In the making of the said gold coin a remedy (that is, a variation from the standard weight or diameter specified above) shall be allowed of an amount not exceeding the following, that is to say:
- (a) a variation from the said standard weight of an amount per coin of 5 grammes; and
- (b) a variation from the said standard diameter of 0.25 millimetres per coin.
- (3) The least current weight of the said gold coin shall be 995 grammes.
- (4) The variation from the standard weight will be measured by weighing each coin separately.
- (5) The design of the said gold coin shall be as follows:

'For the obverse impression Our effigy with the inscription "- ELIZABETH II \cdot D \cdot G \cdot REG \cdot F \cdot D \cdot 1000 POUNDS \cdot 2020", and for the reverse a depiction of James Bond's car accompanied by the 007 logo. The coin shall have a grained edge.'

FIVE HUNDRED POUND GOLD COIN

- 4. (1) A new coin of gold of the denomination of five hundred pounds shall be made, being a coin of a standard weight of 156.295 grammes, a standard diameter of 50 millimetres, a millesimal fineness of not less than 999.9, and being circular in shape.
- (2) In the making of the said gold coin a remedy (that is, a variation from the standard weight or diameter specified above) shall be allowed of an amount not exceeding the following, that is to say:
- (a) a variation from the said standard weight of an amount per coin of 0.8 grammes; and
- (b) a variation from the said standard diameter of 0.125 millimetres per coin.
- (3) The least current weight of the said gold coin shall be 154.5 grammes.
- (4) The variation from the standard weight will be measured as the average of a sample of not more than one kilogram of the coin.
- (5) The design of the said gold coin shall be as follows:
- 'For the obverse impression Our effigy with the inscription "· ELIZABETH II · D · G · REG · F · D · 500 POUNDS · 2020", and for the reverse a depiction of James Bond's car accompanied by the 007 logo. The coin shall have a grained edge.'

ONE THOUSAND POUND SILVER COIN

- 5. (1) A new coin of silver of the denomination of one thousand pounds shall be made, being a coin of a standard weight of 2010 grammes, a standard diameter of 150 millimetres, a standard composition of not less than 999 parts per thousand fine silver, and being circular in shape.
- (2) In the making of the said silver coin a remedy (that is, a variation from the standard weight or diameter specified above) shall be allowed of an amount not exceeding the following, that is to say:

- (a) a variation from the said standard weight of an amount per coin of 9.99 grammes; and
- (b) a variation from the said standard diameter of 0.5 millimetres per coin.
- (3) The variation from the standard weight will be measured by weighing each coin separately.
- (4) The design of the said silver coin shall be as follows:
- 'For the obverse impression Our effigy with the inscription "- ELIZABETH II \cdot D \cdot G \cdot REG \cdot F \cdot D \cdot 1000 POUNDS \cdot 2020", and for the reverse a depiction of James Bond's car accompanied by the 007 logo. The coin shall have a grained edge.'
- (5) The said silver coin shall be legal tender for payment of any amount in any part of Our United Kingdom.

FIVE HUNDRED POUND SILVER COIN

- 6. (1) A new coin of silver of the denomination of five hundred pounds shall be made, being a coin of a standard weight of 1005 grammes, a standard diameter of 100 millimetres, a standard composition of not less than 999 parts per thousand fine silver, and being circular in shape.
- (2) In the making of the said silver coin a remedy (that is, a variation from the standard weight or diameter specified above) shall be allowed of an amount not exceeding the following, that is to say:
- (a) a variation from the said standard weight of an amount per coin of 5 grammes; and
- (b) a variation from the said standard diameter of 0.25 millimetres per coin.
- (3) The variation from the standard weight will be measured by weighing each coin separately.
- (4) The design of the said silver coin shall be as follows:
- 'For the obverse impression Our effigy with the inscription "- ELIZABETH II · D · G · REG · F · D · 500 POUNDS · 2020", and for the reverse a depiction of James Bond's car accompanied by the 007 logo. The coin shall have a grained edge.'
- (5) The said silver coin shall be legal tender for payment of any amount in any part of Our United Kingdom.

TEN POUND SILVER COIN

- 7. (1) A new coin of silver of the denomination of ten pounds shall be made, being a coin of a standard weight of 156.295 grammes, a standard diameter of 65 millimetres, a standard composition of not less than 999 parts per thousand fine silver, and being circular in shape.
- (2) In the making of the said silver coin a remedy (that is, a variation from the standard weight or diameter specified above) shall be allowed of an amount not exceeding the following, that is to say:
- (a) a variation from the said standard weight of an amount per coin of 0.85 grammes; and
- (b) a variation from the said standard diameter of 0.125 millimetres per coin.
- (3) The variation from the standard weight will be measured as the average of a sample of not more than one kilogram of the coin.
- (4) The design of the said silver coin shall be as follows:
- 'For the obverse impression Our effigy with the inscription "- ELIZABETH II · D · G · REG · F · D · 10 POUNDS · 2020", and for the reverse a depiction of James Bond's car accompanied by the 007 logo. The coin shall have a grained edge.'
- (5) The said silver coin shall be legal tender for payment of any amount in any part of Our United Kingdom.
- 8. This Proclamation shall come into force on the seventh day of November Two thousand and nineteen.
- Given at Our Court at Buckingham Palace, this sixth day of November in the year of our Lord Two thousand and nineteen and in the sixty-eighth year of Our Reign.

GOD SAVE THE QUEEN

(3422064)

Departments of State

PRIVY COUNCIL OFFICE

AT THE COURT AT BUCKINGHAM PALACE

THE 6th DAY OF NOVEMBER 2019 PRESENT.

THE QUEEN'S MOST EXCELLENT MAJESTY IN COUNCIL

The Public Appointments Order in Council 2019 ("the 2019 Order") makes provision for an independent Commissioner to monitor the procedures adopted by appointing authorities when making appointments to public bodies.

It is desirable to revoke the 2019 Order and make further provision in relation to these matters. Her Majesty is pleased, by and with the advice of Her Privy Council, to order as follows—

Citation, commencement, revocation and saving provision

- 1.—(1) This Order may be cited as the Public Appointments (No. 2) Order in Council 2019 and comes into force on the day after the day on which it is made.
- (2) The Public Appointments Order in Council 2019 is revoked except in relation to a selection process for a public appointment which is not concluded immediately before this Order comes into force.

 Interpretation
- 2.—(1) The Interpretation Act 1978(a) applies to this Order as it applies to an Act of Parliament and, in particular, as if the 2019 Order were an enactment for the purposes of section 16(1) of that Act. (2) In this Order—
- "appointing authority" means, in relation to a public appointment—
 (a) a Minister of the Crown or, as the case may be, the Welsh Ministers, the First Minister for Wales or the Counsel General;
- (b) the NHS Trust Development Authority where an appointment is made by it on behalf of a Minister of the Crown or, as the case may be, the Welsh Ministers, the First Minister for Wales or the Counsel General:
- (c) in relation to the Office of Communications (OFCOM), a Minister of the Crown or, as the case may be, the Welsh Ministers, the Scottish Ministers or the Minister for the Economy in Northern Ireland;
- "Commissioner" means the person appointed for the time being by Her Majesty in Council to be Her Majesty's Commissioner for Public Appointments(a);
- "Governance Code" means the Governance Code for Public Appointments published under article 3 by the Minister for the Cabinet Office:
- "public appointment" means, subject to paragraph (3), any appointment to a public body or public office (including any reappointment or extension of an appointment) that is made by, or on the recommendation of, an appointing authority;
- "public body or public office" means any body or office that is listed in Schedule 1 or, as the case may be, Schedule 2.
- (3) The appointment of a person who is to be an employee of a public body or public office is not a public appointment for the purposes of this Order except so far as specified in Schedule 2. In this paragraph, "employee" has the same meaning as in section 230(1) of the Employment Rights Act 1996(b).
- (4) Where a provisional appointment is to be made before a public body or public office exists in law or before a body or office has been specified as a public body or public office for the purposes of this Order, the Minister for the Cabinet Office may notify the Commissioner that the appointment is to be treated as if it were a public appointment to a public body or public office for the purposes of this Order.

Governance Code

- 3.—(1) The Minister for the Cabinet Office must prepare, publish and keep under review a Governance Code which sets out—
- (a) the principles of public appointments, and
- (b) guidance on the practices to be followed in relation to making public appointments.
- (2) Before publishing the Governance Code, including the principles of public appointments, and any amendments to them, the Minister for the Cabinet Office must consult the Commissioner and the First Minister for Wales.

Functions of the Commissioner

- 4.—(1) The Commissioner must exercise his or her functions under this Order with the object of ensuring that appointing authorities act in accordance with the Governance Code, including the principles of public appointments.
- (2) The Commissioner must, in the manner the Commissioner thinks fit, carry out an audit of the procedures and practices followed by appointing authorities in making public appointments, including the interpretation and application by them of the Governance Code including the principles of public appointments.
- (3) The Commissioner may conduct an investigation into any aspect of public appointments with the object of improving their quality.

(4) The Commissioner may conduct an inquiry into the procedures and practices followed by an appointing authority in relation to any public appointment whether in response to a complaint or otherwise.

(5) The Commissioner may require appointing authorities to publish specified summary information relating to public appointments.

(6) For the purposes of this article, appointing authorities must provide the Commissioner with any information the Commissioner reasonably requires.

5. The Commissioner may, at the request of a Minister of the Crown, carry out such additional functions as may be agreed between the Minister and the Commissioner.

Commissioner's annual report

6. The Commissioner must publish an annual report on public appointments which must include-

(a) information arising from the audit carried out under article 4(2), including information about non-compliance; and

(b) an account of any inquiry into the public appointment procedures and practices of appointing authorities.

Exercise of the Commissioner's functions, powers and duties

7.—(1) The Commissioner may delegate functions, powers and duties to-

(a) an officer of the Commissioner: or

(b) for the purposes of the functions carried out under article 4(2) or additional functions carried out under article 5, any other person.

(2) A delegation does not prevent the Commissioner from doing anything personally.

(3) A delegation does not prevent the Commissioner's functions, powers and duties from remaining the responsibility of the Commissioner.

Richard Tilbrook

SCHEDULE 1 Article 2(2)

Bodies and Offices Regulated by the Commissioner for Public **Appointments**

Attorney General's Office

Her Majesty's Crown Prosecution Service Inspectorate

Department for Business, Energy and Industrial Strategy

Advisory, Conciliation and Arbitration Service British Business Bank, Chair only

British Hallmarking Council Central Arbitration Committee

Certification Officer

Civil Nuclear Police Authority

Coal Authority

Committee on Climate Change Committee on Fuel Poverty

Committee on Radioactive Waste Management Competition and Markets Authority Board

Competition Appeal Tribunal

Competition Service

Electricity Settlements Company Ltd, Chair and Senior Independent

Director only

Financial Reporting Council

Gas and Electricity Markets Authority

Groceries Code Adjudicator

Labour Market Enforcement Director

Land Registry

Low Carbon Contracts Company Ltd, Chair and Senior Independent

Director Only Low Pay Commission National Nuclear Laboratory

National Physical Laboratory (NPL) Management Ltd, Chair only

Nuclear Decommissioning Authority

Nuclear Liabilities Fund Oil and Gas Authority, Chair only Ordnance Survey, Chair only Post Office Ltd, Chair only

Pubs Code Adjudicator and Deputy Pubs Code Adjudicator

Regulatory Policy Committee **Small Business Commissioner UK Atomic Energy Authority** UK Research and Innovation

Cabinet Office

Advisory Committee on Business Appointments, excluding political

members

Boundary Commission for England **Boundary Commission for Wales**

Civil Service Pensions Board

Committee on Standards in Public Life, excluding political appointments

Equality and Human Rights Commission

House of Lords Appointment Commission, excluding political members

Office of the Registrar of Consultant Lobbyists

Security Vetting Appeals Panel Senior Salaries Review Body **UK Statistics Authority Board**

Department for Digital, Culture, Media and Sport

The Advisory Council on National Records and Archives

Arts Council England

Big Lottery Fund (The National Lottery Community Fund)

Birmingham Organising Committee for the 2022 Commonwealth

Games Ltd

British Broadcasting Corporation

British Film Institute British Library

British Museum

Charity Commission for England and Wales

Gambling Commission

Geffrve Museum

Historic Buildings and Monuments Commission for England

Historic Royal Palaces

Horniman Public Museum and Public Park Trust

Horserace Betting Levy Board Imperial War Museum Information Commissioner National Citizen Service Trust

National Gallery

National Heritage Memorial Fund/Heritage Lottery Fund (The National

Lottery Heritage Fund) National Museums Liverpool National Portrait Gallery Natural History Museum

Office of Communications (OFCOM)

Reviewing Committee on the Export of Works of Art and Objects of

Royal Armouries Royal Museums Greenwich Science Museum Group Sianel Pedwar Cymru (S4C)

Sport England

Cultural Interest

Sports Grounds Safety Authority

Tate

The Royal Parks Theatres Trust

Treasure Valuation Committee

UK Sport

United Kingdom Anti-Doping Ltd Victoria and Albert Museum

VisitBritain VisitEngland Wallace Collection

Department for Education

Adoption and Special Guardianship Leadership Board, Chair only

Child Safeguarding Practice Review Panel Children's Commissioner for England Construction Industry Training Board

Engineering Construction Industry Training Board

Film Industry Training Board

Education Commissioner's Office, Further Education Commissioner and Deputy Further Education Commissioner only Her Maiesty's Chief Inspector of Education, Children's Services and Skills

Independent Assessors for Student Finance, Appeals and Complaints

Institute for Apprenticeships and Technical Education

Office for Standards in Education, Children's Services and Skills

(Ofsted)

Office for Students

Office of Qualifications and Examinations Regulation (Ofqual)

Residential Care Leadership Board, Chair only

School Teachers' Review Body Social Mobility Commission Social Work England

Student Loans Company Ltd

Department for Environment, Food and Rural AffairsAdvisory Committee on Releases to the Environment

Agriculture and Horticulture Development Board

British Wool Marketing Board

Broads Authority

Conservation Board for the Chilterns Area of Outstanding Natural

Beauty, with the exception of parish members

Conservation Board for the Cotswolds Area of Outstanding Natural

Beauty, with the exception of parish members

Consumer Council for Water Covent Garden Market Authority

Environment Agency Forestry Commission

Joint Nature Conservation Committee Marine Management Organisation

National Park Authorities, with the exception of parish members

Natural England

Regional Flood and Coastal Committees, Chair only

Royal Botanic Gardens, Kew Science Advisory Council Sea Fish Industry Authority

Water Services Regulation Authority (OFWAT) **Department for International Development**

CDC Group Plc

Commonwealth Scholarship Commission Independent Commission for Aid Impact

Department for TransportBritish Transport Police Authority

Civil Aviation Authority

Disabled Persons Transport Advisory Committee

Dover Harbour Board, Chair only East West Rail Company

Harwich Haven Authority, Chair only Highways England, Chair only

HS2 Ltd

Independent Commission on Civil Aviation Noise

London and Continental Railways Ltd Milford Haven Port Authority, Chair only

Network Rail, Chair only Office of Rail and Road

Port of London Authority, Chair only Port of Tyne Authority, Chair only

Traffic Commissioners Transport Focus

Department for Work and Pensions

BPDTS Ltd

Health and Safety Executive Industrial Injuries Advisory Council Money and Pensions Service National Employment Savings Trust Office for Nuclear Regulation Pension Protection Fund, Chair only Pension Protection Fund Ombudsman

Pensions Ombudsman Pensions Regulator

Social Security Advisory Committee

Department of Health and Social Care

Advisory Committee on Clinical Excellence Awards, Chair and

Medical Director only

Advisory Committee on Resource Allocation, Chair only

British Pharmacopoeia Commission Care Quality Commission Commission on Human Medicines

Committee on Mutagenicity of Chemicals in Food, Consumer

Products and the Environment Food Standards Agency

Health and Social Care Information Centre (NHS Digital)

Health Education England Health Research Authority

Human Fertilisation and Embryology Authority

Human Tissue Authority

Independent Reconfiguration Panel

Monitor (part of the operating body known as NHS Improvement)

National Data Guardian

National Institute for Health and Care Excellence

NHS Blood and Transplant

NHS Business Services Authority

NHS Commissioning Board (NHS England)

NHS Counter Fraud Authority

NHS Litigation Authority (NHS Resolution)

NHS Pay Review Body

NHS Trust Development Authority (part of the operating body known

as NHS Improvement)

NHS Trusts

Office for Strategic Coordination of Health Research, Chair only

Review Body on Doctors' and Dentists' Remuneration

Export Credits Guarantee Department (UK Export Finance)

Export Guarantee Advisory Council Foreign and Commonwealth Office

Great Britain-China Centre

Marshall Aid Commemoration Commission Westminster Foundation for Democracy

HM Treasury

Court of Directors of the Bank of England, with the exception of the

Governor and Deputy Governors Crown Estate Commissioners Financial Conduct Authority National Savings and Investments

Royal Mint Advisory Committee on the Design of Coins, Medals,

Seals and Decorations

UK Government Investments

Home Office

Advisory Council on the Misuse of Drugs

Animals in Science Committee

Appointed Person under the Proceeds of Crime Act 2002

Biometric and Forensics Ethics Group College of Policing Board of Directors

Commissioner for the Retention and Use of Biometric Material

Disclosure and Barring Service Forensic Science Regulator

Gangmasters and Labour Abuse Authority

Her Majesty's Inspectorate of Constabulary and Fire & Rescue

Services

Independent Anti-Slavery Commissioner

Independent Chief Inspector of Borders and Immigration

Independent Family Returns Panel

Independent Monitor of the Disclosure and Barring Service

Independent Office for Police Conduct Independent Reviewer of Terrorism Legislation

Members of the Visiting Committee of any immigration removal centre

or short-term holding facility Migration Advisory Committee

National Crime Agency Remuneration Review Body Office of the Immigration Services Commissioner Police Advisory Board for England and Wales

Police Remuneration Review Body Security Industry Authority

Surveillance Camera Commissioner Technical Advisory Board (for the Regulation of Investigatory Powers

Act 2000), with the exception of Agency Members

Ministry of Defence

Armed Forces Pay Review Body Defence Nuclear Safety Committee Independent Medical Expert Group

Independent Monitoring Board for the Military Corrective Training

Centre

Nuclear Research Advisory Council

Oil and Pipelines Agency Royal Air Force Museum

Science Advisory Committee on the Medical Implications of Less-

Lethal Weapons

Service Complaints Ombudsman Single Source Regulations Office

Veterans Advisory and Pensions Committees

Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government

Architects Registration Board

Building Regulation Advisory Committee

Commission for Local Administration in England (Local Government

and Social Care Ombudsman)
Ebbsfleet Development Corporation

Homes England

Leasehold Advisory Service (LEASE) Regulator of Social Housing The Housing Ombudsman Valuation Tribunal Service

Ministry of Justice

Advisory Committees on Justices of the Peace Advisory Council on Conscientious Objectors

Chair of the National Council of Prisoner Escort and Custody Services

Lay Observers

Children and Family Court Advisory and Support Service

Civil Justice Council

Civil Procedure Rule Committee

Commissioner for Victims and Witnesses (Victims' Commissioner)

Court Examiners

Court of Protection Visitors
Criminal Cases Review Commission
Criminal Procedure Rule Committee
Family Procedure Rule Committee
Her Majesty's Chief Inspector of Prisons
Her Majesty's Chief Inspector of Probation
Independent Advisory Panel on Deaths in Custody

Independent Monitoring Board of any prison or young offender

institution

Insolvency Rules Committee

Judicial Appointments and Conduct Ombudsman

Judicial Appointments Commission

Judicial Pension Board, independent Chair and independent

members only

Law Commission, with the exception of the Chair

Legal Services Board

Multi-Agency Public Protection Arrangements Lay Advisers

National Chair of the Independent Monitoring Boards

National Mental Capacity Forum, Chair only

Non-Judicial Members of Disciplinary Panels of the Judicial Conduct

Investigations Office

Parole Board, with the exception of judicial members

Persons appointed by the Lord Chancellor under section 2 of the

Legal Aid, Sentencing and Punishment of Offenders Act 2012

Prisoner Escort and Custody Services Lay Observers

Prisons and Probation Ombudsman

Prison Service Pay Review Body

Sentencing Council for England and Wales

Tribunal Procedure Committee

Youth Justice Board for England and Wales

Northern Ireland Office

Boundary Commission for Northern Ireland Chief Electoral Officer for Northern Ireland Equality Commission for Northern Ireland Northern Ireland Human Rights Commission Parades Commission for Northern Ireland

Scotland Office

Boundary Commission for Scotland

Welsh Government

Advisory Panel to the Welsh Language Commissioner

Agricultural Advisory Panel for Wales All Wales Medicines Strategy Group

All Wales Programme Monitoring Committee for the European

Structural Funds

Amgueddfa Cymru - National Museum of Wales

Angurin Beyan University Local Health Board

Aneurin Bevan University Local Health Board

Animal Health and Welfare Framework Group

Arts Council of Wales

Betsi Cadwaladr Community Health Council Betsi Cadwaladr University Health Board Board of Community Health Councils Brecon Beacons National Park Authority

Cardiff & Vale Community Health Council

Cardiff & Vale University Health Board

Career Choices Dewis Gyrfa

Children's Commissioner for Wales

Commissioner for Older People in Wales

Cwm Taf Morgannwg Community Health Council

Cwm Taf Morgannwg University Local Health Board

Design Commission for Wales

Education & Skills Ministerial Advisory Group

Education Workforce Council Future Generations Commissioner Health Education Improvement Wales Higher Education Funding Council for Wales

Hybu Cig Cymru

Hywel Dda Community Health Council Hywel Dda University Health Board Independent Remuneration Panel for Wales

Industry Wales

Life Sciences Hub Wales Board

Local Government Boundary Commission for Wales

National Academy for Educational Leadership

National Adviser for Violence against Women and other forms of

Gender-based Violence, Domestic Abuse and Sexual Violence

National Library of Wales Natural Resources Wales

Pembrokeshire Coast National Park Authority

Powys Community Health Council Powys Teaching Health Board Public Health Wales NHS Trust

Qualifications Wales Regulatory Board for Wales

Royal Commission on the Ancient and Historical Monuments of Wales

Snowdonia National Park Authority

Social Care Wales

Sports Council for Wales

Swansea Bay Community Health Council Swansea Bay University Local Health Board Velindre National Health Services Trust

Welsh Ambulance Services National Health Service Trust

Welsh Industrial Development Advisory Board

Welsh Language Commissioner Welsh Revenue Authority SCHEDULE 2 Article 2(3)

Specified Employee posts which are to be Public Appointments

Arts and Humanities Research Council, Executive Chair only

Biotechnology and Biological Sciences Research Council, Executive

Economic and Social Research Council, Executive Chair only

Engineering and Physical Sciences Research Council, Executive Chair

Innovate UK, Executive Chair only

Medical Research Council, Executive Chair only

Natural Environment Research Council, Executive Chair only

Research England, Executive Chair only

Science and Technology Facilities Council, Executive Chair only

EXPLANATORY NOTE

(This note is not part of the Order)

This Order replaces the Public Appointments Order in Council 2019 ("the 2019 Order"). It sets out the duties and powers of the Commissioner for Public Appointments ("the Commissioner"). This Order largely restates the provisions of the 2019 Order.

The principal provisions of the Order are:

Article 2, which makes interpretative provision. Amongst other things, it defines "public appointment" for the purposes of this Order. The appointment to a body or office listed in Schedule 1 will not be a public appointment where that person will be an employee of that body or office. However, the appointment of a person to a post listed in Schedule 2 will be a "public appointment" within the Commissioner's remit.

Article 3, which requires the Minister for the Cabinet Office to maintain a Governance Code setting out the principles, and guidance on the making, of public appointments and to consult before amending that Code.

Article 4, which sets out the functions of the Commissioner.

Article 5, which enables the Commissioner to undertake additional functions relating to appointments at the request of a Minister of the Crown

Article 6, which requires the Commissioner to publish an annual report.

Article 7, which allows the delegation of any power of the Commissioner to any officer of the Commissioner. The Commissioner may also authorise any person to perform the functions of auditing selection practices and policies or any additional functions relating to appointments at the request of a Minister of the Crown under Article 5.

(a) 1978 c. 30; the interpretative provisions of this Act have been amended extensively but there are no amendments to section 16.

(a) See the Order in Council dated 19th April 2016, which appoints Peter Riddell as Commissioner.

(b) 1996 c. 18. (3421400)

PARLIAMENT ASSEMBLIES & GOVERNMENT

LEGISLATION & TREATIES

THE SCOTTISH PARLIAMENT THE SCOTTISH PARLIAMENT (LETTERS PATENT AND PROCLAMATIONS) ORDER 1999

The following Letter Patent was signed by Her Majesty The Queen on the 4 November 2019 in respect of the Children (Equal Protection from Assault) (Scotland) Bill ASP 16.

ELIZABETH THE SECOND by the Grace of God of the United Kingdom of Great Britain and Northern Ireland and of Our other Realms and Territories Queen Head of the Commonwealth Defender of the Faith To Our trusty and well beloved the members of the Scottish Parliament

GREETING:

FORASMUCH as a Bill has been passed by the Scottish Parliament and has been submitted to Us for Our Royal Assent by the Presiding Officer of the Scottish Parliament in accordance with the Scotland Act 1998 the short Title of which Bill is set forth in the Schedule hereto but that Bill by virtue of the Scotland Act 1998 does not become an Act of the Scottish Parliament nor have effect in the Law without Our Royal Assent signified by Letters Patent under Our Scottish Seal (that is Our Seal appointed by the Treaty of Union to be kept and used in Scotland in place of the Great Seal of Scotland) signed with Our own hand and recorded in the Register of the Great Seal We have therefore caused these Our Letters Patent to be made and have signed them and by them do give Our Royal Assent to that Bill COMMANDING ALSO the Keeper of Our Scottish Seal to seal these Our Letters with that Seal.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF we have caused these Our Letters to be made Patent.

WITNESS Ourself at Buckingham Palace on the 4th day of November in the sixty-eighth year of Our Reign.

By The Queen Herself Signed with Her Own Hand. SCHEDULE

Children (Equal Protection from Assault) (Scotland) Bill ASP 16

(3424184)

ENVIRONMENT & INFRASTRUCTURE

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

DEPARTMENT FOR INFRASTRUCTURE THE WATERWAYS (ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT ASSESSMENT) REGULATIONS (NORTHERN IRELAND) 2019

The Department for Infrastructure has made a Statutory Rule entitled "The Waterways (Environmental Impact Assessment) Regulations (Northern Ireland) 2019" (S.R. 2019 No. 209), which comes into operation on 1st December 2019.

The Regulations amend Northern Ireland legislation in order to ensure that Council Directive 2014/52/EU, which amended Council Directive 2011/92/EU, is implemented in respect of canal schemes and certain marina works.

Council Directive 2011/92/EU provides for the assessment of the effects of certain private and public projects on the environment. Council Directive 2014/52/EU strengthens the quality of the environmental impact assessment procedure in order to improve levels of environmental protection and to simplify the administrative procedures involved.

The Regulations revoke and re-enact with amendment the provisions contained within the Drainage (Environmental Impact Assessment) Regulations (Northern Ireland) 2006 that relate to canal schemes and certain marina works in order to provide stand-alone Regulations which implement Council Directive 2014/52/EU.

Copies of the Rule may be purchased from the Stationery Office at www.tsoshop.co.uk or by contacting TSO Customer Services on 0333 202 5070 or viewed online at http://www.legislation.gov.uk/nisr.

(3424187)

Planning

TOWN PLANNING

LISBURN AND CASTLEREAGH CITY COUNCIL TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING LISBURN AND CASTLEREAGH CITY COUNCIL PUBLIC NOTICE LISBURN AND CASTLEREAGH LOCAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN 2032 PUBLICATION OF DRAFT PLAN STRATEGY THE PLANNING (LOCAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN) REGULATIONS (NORTHERN IRELAND) 2015

In accordance with Regulation 15 of The Planning (Local Development Plan) Regulations (Northern Ireland) 2015 notice is hereby given that Lisburn and Castlereagh City Council is publishing its Local Development Plan 2032 – draft Plan Strategy for a period of public consultation. The statutory consultation period will commence on Friday 8 November 2019 and close at 5pm on Friday 10 January 2020. While normally carried out over an 8 week period an additional week is being added to account for the fact that the consultation falls over the Christmas period. Any representations made after the statutory consultation period closes will not be accepted.

Availability of the draft Plan Strategy and supporting documents

The supporting documents including a Sustainability Appraisal incorporating Strategic Environmental Assessment, draft Habitats Regulations Assessment, Section 75 Equality Impact Screening and Rural Needs Impact Assessment and 8 Technical Supplements will be available from the start of the public consultation period on 8 November 2019.

These will also be published on the Council's website at www.lisburncastlereagh.gov.uk/LDP

All documentation will be freely downloadable.

These documents will be available for inspection between the hours of 9.00am – 5.00pm from Monday to Friday at:

Planning Unit, Civic Headquarters, Lagan Valley Island, Lisburn, BT27 4RL.

How to Respond

Representations should be made in writing using one of the following methods:

• Via our online consultation portal

- Downloading a copy of the response form from our website and emailing it to the Local Development Plan Team at LDP@lisburncastlereagh.gov.uk or
- Requesting a copy of our response form to be posted to you or collecting a hard copy from the Planning Unit, Civic Headquarters, Lagan Valley Island, Lisburn, BT27 4RL and returning it to the Local Development Plan team at the same address.

Further information on how to respond and how the Council will deal with representations made is available on the Council's website.

Public Engagement Events

Further to the public meetings held during the 4 week preconsultation period, the Council is undertaking a further ten drop-in sessions where the draft Plan Strategy and associated documents will be available and planning officials present to respond to any queries. These are as follows:-

Date	Venue	Time
14 November	The Oak Room, Lagan Valley Island,	Session 1 – 2.00pm - 4.00pm
	Lisburn, BT27 4RL	Session 2 – 6.00pm - 8.00pm
19 November	Hillsborough Village Centre, 7	Session 1 – 2.00pm - 4.00pm
	Ballynahinch Road, Hillsborough, BT26 6AR	Session 2 – 6.00pm - 8.00pm
27 November	Maghaberry Community Centre,	Session 1 – 2.00pm - 4.00pm
	Maghaberry Road, Maghaberry, BT67 0JG	Session 2 – 6.00pm - 8.00pm
4 December	Bridge Community Centre, 50 Railway	Session 1 – 2.00pm - 4.00pm
	Street, Lisburn, BT28 1XP	Session 2 – 6.00pm - 8.00pm
11 December	Ballymacash Community Centre,	Session 1 – 2.00pm - 4.00pm
	29 Rathvarna Drive, Lisburn, BT28 2UB	Session 2 – 6.00pm - 8.00pm

If you require further information you may wish to email us at LDP@lisburncastlereagh.gov.uk or by telephone on 028 9250 9250.

Please note that any representations received later than 5.00pm on 10th January 2020 will not be considered.

Mr David Burns Chief Executive

www.lisburncastlereagh.gov.uk

(3422198)

OTHER NOTICES

COMPANY LAW SUPPLEMENT

The Company Law Supplement details information notified to, or by, the Registrar of Companies. The Company Law Supplement to *The London, Belfast and Edinburgh Gazette* is published weekly on a Tuesday.

These supplements are available to view at https://www.thegazette.co.uk/browse-publications.

Alternatively use the search and filter feature which can be found here https://www.thegazette.co.uk/all-notices on the company number and/or name. (3422218)

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN, PURSUANT TO SECTIONS 1064 AND 1077 OF THE COMPANIES ACT 2006, THAT IN RESPECT OF THE UNDERMENTIONED COMPANY NOTICE OF APPOINTMENT OF A LIQUIDATOR WAS REGISTERED RECEIVED BY ME ON 30/10/2019 AND REGISTERED ON 01/11/2019.

NI028705 C.T. DEVELOPMENTS LIMITED HELEN SHILLIDAY REGISTRAR OF COMPANIES

(3422221)

DEPARTMENT FOR COMMUNITIES

THE SOCIAL SECURITY ADMINISTRATION (NORTHERN IRELAND) ACT 1992

THE SOCIAL SECURITY (ICELAND) (LIECHTENSTEIN) (NORWAY) (CITIZENS' RIGHTS AGREEMENT) ORDER (NORTHERN IRELAND) 2019

The Department for Communities has made a Statutory Rule entitled "The Social Security (Iceland) (Liechtenstein) (Norway) (Citizens' Rights Agreement) Order (Northern Ireland) 2019 (S.R. 2019 No. 211), which comes into operation in accordance with Article 1 of that Order. This Order makes provision for the modification of certain social security legislation, so as to give effect to the Agreement between the United Kingdom of Great Britain and Northern Ireland and Iceland, the Principality of Liechtenstein ("Liechtenstein") and the Kingdom of Norway ("Norway") signed at London on 2nd April 2019 ("the EEA Citizens' Rights Agreement").

This agreement makes provision for citizens' rights following the withdrawal of the United Kingdom from the European Union when the Agreement on the European Economic Area of 2nd May 1992 as amended as well as its Protocols and Annexes ("the EEA Agreement") ceases to apply. Title III of Part Two of the EEA Citizens' Rights Agreement makes provision in relation to social security coordination. Copies of the Rule may be purchased from the Stationery Office at www.tsoshop.co.uk or by contacting TSO Customer Services on 0870 600 522 or viewed online at http://www.legislation.gov.uk/nisr.

(3422220)

DEPARTMENT FOR COMMUNITIES THE SOCIAL SECURITY ADMINISTRATION (NORTHERN

IRELAND) ACT 1992 THE SOCIAL SECURITY (SWITZERLAND) (CITIZENS' RIGHTS AGREEMENT) ORDER (NORTHERN IRELAND) 2019

The Department for Communities has made a Statutory Rule entitled "The Social Security (Switzerland) (Citizens' Rights Agreement) Order (Northern Ireland) 2019 (S.R. 2019 No. 212), which comes into operation in accordance with Article 1 of that Order.

This Order makes provision for the modification of certain social security legislation, so as to give effect to the Agreement between the United Kingdom of Great Britain and Northern Ireland and the Swiss Confederation ("Switzerland") on Citizens' Rights following the withdrawal of the United Kingdom from the European Union and the Free Movement of Persons Agreement, signed at Bern on 25th February 2019 ("the Switzerland Citizens' Rights Agreement"). Part 3 of the Switzerland Citizens' Rights Agreement makes provision in relation to social security coordination.

The rules of the European Union relating to social security coordination apply between the United Kingdom and Switzerland as provided for by the Agreement between the European Community and its Member States, on the one part, and the Swiss Confederation, on the other, on the free movement of persons, signed at Luxembourg on 21st June 1999 ("FMOPA"). When the United Kingdom leaves the European Union, FMOPA will also cease to apply.

Copies of the Rule may be purchased from the Stationery Office at www.tsoshop.co.uk or by contacting TSO Customer Services on 0870 600 522 or viewed online at http://www.legislation.gov.uk/nisr.

(3422224)

DEPARTMENT FOR DIGITAL, CULTURE MEDIA & SPORT NOTICE TO REVOKE DESIGNATION OF AGE-VERIFICATION REGULATOR UNDER DIGITAL ECONOMY ACT 2017

The Secretary of State for Digital, Culture, Media and Sport hereby revokes, in exercise of the power in section 16(3)(a) of the Digital Economy Act 2017 ("the 2017 Act"), the designation of the British Board of Film Classification as the age verification regulator made under section 16(1) of the 2017 Act on 21 February 2018 for the purposes of the following functions:

- a. section 18 (regulator's power to require information);
- b. section 19(2) and (11) (enforcement by regulator of section 14);
- c. section 21 (notice by regulator to payment-services providers and ancillary service providers);
- d. section 23 (regulator's power to require internet service providers to block access to material), subject to section 24 (no power to give notice under section 23(1) where detrimental to national security etc);
- e. section 25 (guidance to be published by regulator);
- f. section 26 (exercise of functions by regulator); and
- g. section 28 (requirements for notices given by regulator under this Part) (to the extent that this applies in relation to the giving of notices by the British Board of Film Classification under the provisions listed in this paragraph).

Matt Warman

Minister for Digital and Broadband on behalf of the Secretary of State 31 October 2019 (3422225)

COMPANIES

TAKEOVERS, TRANSFERS & MERGERS

IN THE HIGH COURT OF JUSTICE COMPANIES COURT (Ch D) CR-2019-004782 BETWEEN

EC INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED

- and -

MARKEL INTERNATIONAL INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED

- and -

IN THE MATTER OF PART VII OF THE FINANCIAL SERVICES AND MARKETS ACT 2000

Legal Notice

Notice is hereby given that on 23 October 2019 an Application was made under section 107 of the Financial Services and Markets Act 2000 (the "Act") in the High Court of Justice, Business and Property Courts of England and Wales, Companies Court (ChD) in London by EC Insurance Company Limited (the "Transferor") and Markel International Insurance Company Limited (the "Transferee"), for an order:

- 1. under section 111 of the Act sanctioning a scheme (the "**Scheme**") providing for the transfer to the Transferee of the entire book of business written and/or assumed by or on behalf of the Transferor in the United Kingdom, the Isle of Man and Guernsey.
- 2. making ancillary provisions in connection with the Scheme pursuant to Sections 112 and 112A of the Act.

A copy of the report on the terms of the Scheme prepared in accordance with section 109 of the Act by an Independent Expert (the "IE Report"), a statement setting out the terms of the Scheme and a summary of the IE Report, and the Scheme document may be obtained free of charge by contacting the Transferor or the Transferee using the telephone number or addresses set out below. These documents and other related documents, including sample copies of the communications to policyholders, are also available via website at www.markelinternational.com/eciclpartvii. This website will be updated for any key changes to the proposed transfer.

Any questions or concerns relating to the proposed Scheme should be referred to the Transferor and the Transferee either by telephone at the below Freephone telephone number or in writing to the below postal and e-mail addresses:

- (a) 0800 668 1425;
- (b) eciclpartvii@markel.com;
- (c) EC Insurance Company Limited, 20 Fenchurch Street, London, EC3M 3AZ, United Kingdom.

Our telephone lines are open from 9.00am to 5.30pm, Monday to Friday (excluding bank holidays and public holidays). Callers outside of these hours will be able to leave a message and request that their call is returned

If you have a policy with the Transferor and/or Transferee please quote your policy number in any correspondence. This can be found on your policy documentation or related correspondence.

The Application is due to be heard at the High Court of Justice of England and Wales, 7 Rolls Building, Fetter Lane, London, EC4A 1NL, United Kingdom on 5 March 2020. Any person who thinks that he or she would be adversely affected by the carrying out of the Scheme, or objects to the Scheme, may attend the hearing and express their views, either in person or by representative. It is requested that anyone intending to do so informs the Transferor and the Transferee at the address provided above, in writing as soon as possible and preferably before 27 February 2020 to set out the nature of their objection. This will enable the Transferor and the Transferee to provide notification of any changes to the hearing and, where possible, to address any concerns raised in advance of the hearing. Any person who objects to, or considers they may be adversely

Any person who objects to, or considers they may be adversely affected by, the Scheme but does not intend to attend the hearing may make representations about the Scheme by giving written notice of such representations to the Transferor and the Transferee at the address provided above or by calling the dedicated Freephone telephone number provided above, in each case as soon as possible and preferably before 27 February 2020.

The Transferor and the Transferee will inform the UK's Financial Conduct Authority and Prudential Regulation Authority of any objections raised in advance of the hearing, regardless of whether the person making the objection intends to attend the hearing.

8 November 2019

Eversheds Sutherland (International) LLP, 1 Wood Street, London,

EC2V 7WS, United Kingdom

Solicitors acting for the Transferor and Transferee. (3419863)

Corporate insolvency

Creditors' voluntary liquidation

APPOINTMENT OF LIQUIDATORS

PURSUANT TO ARTICLE 95 OF THE INSOLVENCY (NORTHERN IRELAND) ORDER 1989

Name of Company: SOFTWARE CONNECTIONS (NI) LTD

Company Number: NI621760

Nature of Business: SIC Code 46510 - Wholesale of computers,

computer peripheral equipment and software

Type of Liquidation: Creditors

Registered office: 34 Dufferin Avenue, Bangor BT20 3AA

Liquidator's name and address: David William John McClean, Baker

Tilly Mooney Moore, 17 Clarendon Road, Belfast BT1 3BG

Office Holder Number: GBNI 047.

By whom Appointed: Creditors (3424188)

PURSUANT TO ARTICLE 95 OF THE INSOLVENCY (NORTHERN IRELAND) ORDER 1989

Name of Company: JM BEAUTY LIMITED

Company Number: NI639894

Nature of Business: Beauty Treatments

Type of Liquidation: Creditors

Registered office: NBAS Chartered Accountants, 18 The Old Mill,

Crossgar BT30 9NZ

Liquidator's name and address: James B Kennedy, Unit A1, Boucher

Business Studios, Glenmachan Place, Belfast BT12 6QH

Office Holder Number: GBNI043.

Date of Appointment: Friday 25th October 2019

By whom Appointed: Creditors and Members (3424173)

FINAL MEETINGS

IN THE MATTER OF THE INSOLVENCY (NI) ORDER 1989 AND IN THE MATTER OF

ENGINEERING TRAINING SERVICES (N.I.) LIMITED

(IN CREDITORS VOLUNTARY LIQUIDATION)

(Company Number NI024774)

Notice convening final meeting of members / creditors

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN, pursuant to Article 92 of THE INSOLVENCY (NORTHERN IRELAND) ORDER 1989, that a final meeting of the members of the above named company will be held at 10.00am on 13 December at the offices of Baker Tilly Mooney Moore, 17 Clarendon Road, Clarendon Dock, Belfast BT1 3BG, to be followed at 10.30am by a final meeting of creditors for the purpose of showing how the winding-up has been conducted and the property of the company disposed of and of hearing any explanation that may be given by the Liquidator and also of determining the manner in which the books, accounts and documents of the company and of the Liquidator shall be disposed of.

A member or creditor entitled to attend and vote at the meetings may appoint a proxy to attend and vote in his place. It is not necessary for the proxy to be a member or creditor. Proxy forms must be lodged with the Liquidator at the office of Baker Tilly Mooney Moore, 17 Clarendon Road, Clarendon Dock, Belfast BT1 3BG no later than 12 noon on the preceding day.

Dated this 5 November 2019

DWJ McClean

Liquidator (3424182)

IN THE MATTER OF THE INSOLVENCY (NI) ORDER 1989 G. B. CONSULTANCY N.I. LTD

(In Liquidation)

(Company Number NI053870)

Notice is hereby given, pursuant to Article 92 of the INSOLVENCY (NORTHERN IRELAND) ORDER 1989, that the Final Meeting of the members and creditors of the above-named Company will be held at the offices of James B Kennedy & Co Ltd, Unit A1, Boucher Business Studios, Glenmachan Place, Belfast BT12 6QH, on Friday 20th December 2019 at 11.00am and 11.15am for the purpose of receiving an account of the Liquidator's Acts and Dealings and of the conduct of the winding-up to date.

Creditors wishing to vote at that meeting must (unless they are individual members attending in person) lodge their proxies at the offices of James B Kennedy & Co Ltd, Chartered Accountants & Licensed Insolvency Practitioners, A1, Boucher Business Studios, Glenmachan Place, Belfast BT12 6QH, no later than 12.00 noon on Thursday 19th December 2019.

Dated this 6th day of November 2019

James B Kennedy F.C.A.

LIQUIDATOR

(3424185)

PURSUANT TO ARTICLE 92, INSOLVENCY (NORTHERN IRELAND) ORDER 1989 GRAINGER BUILDING SERVICES LIMITED

in Liquidation

(Company Number NI010297)

Meeting venue: PwC LLP, Waterfront Plaza, 8 Laganbank Road,

Belfast, BT1 3LR

Meeting date: Friday 13 December 2019 Members meeting time: 11.30 a.m. Creditors meeting time: 11.45 a.m.

Liquidators names: Graham Douglas Frost and David Matthew

Hammond

(3424180)

IN THE MATTER OF THE INSOLVENCY (NI) ORDER 1989 AND IN THE MATTER OF URBAN RAYS TANNING LIMITED

(IN CREDITORS VOLUNTARY LIQUIDATION)

(Company Number NI614992)

Notice convening final meeting of members / creditors

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN, pursuant to Article 92 of THE INSOLVENCY (NORTHERN IRELAND) ORDER 1989, that a final meeting of the members of the above named company will be held at 10.00am on 12 December 2019 at the offices of Baker Tilly Mooney Moore, 17 Clarendon Road, Clarendon Dock, Belfast BT1 3BG, to be followed at 10.30am by a final meeting of creditors for the purpose of showing how the winding-up has been conducted and the property of the company disposed of and of hearing any explanation that may be given by the Liquidator and also of determining the manner in which the books, accounts and documents of the company and of the Liquidator shall be disposed of.

A member or creditor entitled to attend and vote at the meetings may appoint a proxy to attend and vote in his place. It is not necessary for the proxy to be a member or creditor. Proxy forms must be lodged with the Liquidator at the office of Baker Tilly Mooney Moore, 17 Clarendon Road, Clarendon Dock, Belfast BT1 3BG no later than 12 noon on the preceding day.

Dated this 5 November 2019

DWJ McClean

Liquidator (3424175)

MEETINGS OF CREDITORS

INSOLVENCY (NORTHERN IRELAND) ORDER 1989 OAKS FURNITURE T/A FURNITURE WORLD LIMITED

(Company Number NI619751)

Notice is hereby given, pursuant to Article 84 of the INSOLVENCY (NORTHERN IRELAND) ORDER 1989, that a meeting of creditors of the above-named company will be held at the offices of PJG Recovery (NI) Limited, 9 Gibson's Lane, Newtownards, Co Down, BT23 4LJ on Friday, 15 November 2019 at 3.00 pm. for the purpose of dealing with Articles 85-87 of the INSOLVENCY (NORTHERN IRELAND) ORDER 1989.

A full list of the names and addresses of the company's creditors may be inspected, free of charge, between 10.00 a.m. and 4.00.p.m. at the offices of PJG Recovery (NI) Limited, 9 Gibson's Lane, Newtownards, Co Down, BT23 4LJ, on the two business days preceding the date of the meeting. Creditors wishing to vote at the meeting must submit a proof of claim and, unless they are individual creditors attending in person, ensure their proxies are received at the offices of PJG Recovery (NI) Limited, 9 Gibson's Lane, Newtownards, Co Down, BT23 4LJ, no later than 12.00 noon on the business day preceding the date of the meeting.

Dated this 6 day of November 2019.

By Order of the Board

Robert Ferguson

Director (3424179)

INSOLVENCY (NORTHERN IRELAND) ORDER 1989 STUDIO SOUK

(Company Number NI623171)

Notice is hereby given, pursuant to Article 84 of the INSOLVENCY (NORTHERN IRELAND) ORDER 1989, that a meeting of creditors of the above-named company will be held at the offices of PJG Recovery (NI) Limited, 9 Gibson's Lane, Newtownards, Co Down, BT23 4LJ on Friday, 15 November 2019 at 1.30 pm. for the purpose of dealing with Articles 85-87 of that Order.

A full list of the names and addresses of the company's creditors may be inspected, free of charge, between 10.00 a.m. and 4.00.p.m. at the offices of PJG Recovery (NI) Limited, 9 Gibson's Lane, Newtownards, Co Down, BT23 4LJ, on the two business days preceding the date of the meeting. Creditors wishing to vote at the meeting must submit a proof of claim and, unless they are individual creditors attending in person, ensure their proxies are received at the offices of PJG Recovery (NI) Limited, 9 Gibson's Lane, Newtownards, Co Down, BT23 4LJ, no later than 12.00 noon on the business day preceding the date of the meeting.

Dated this 5 day of November 2019.

By Order of the Board James Fraser Brice

Director (3424178)

RESOLUTION FOR WINDING-UP

THE COMPANIES (NORTHERN IRELAND) ORDER 1989 SPECIAL RESOLUTION

OF

SOFTWARE CONNECTIONS (NI) LTD

(Company Number NI621760)

At an Extraordinary General Meeting of the Members of the abovenamed company duly convened and held at the offices of Baker Tilly Mooney Moore, 17 Clarendon Road, Clarendon Dock, Belfast BT1 3BG on 5 November 2019.

The following Special Resolution was duly passed:

Special Resolution

"That the Company be wound up voluntarily."

Karen Gillespie

Chairman (3424186)

NOTICE UNDER THE INSOLVENCY (NORTHERN IRELAND) ORDER 1989

SPECIAL RESOLUTION

OF

JM BEAUTY LIMITED

(Company Number NI639894)

At an extraordinary general meeting of the Creditors of the abovenamed company duly convened and held at Unit A1, Boucher Business Studios, Glenmachan Place, Belfast BT12 6QH on Friday 25th October 2019 the following Special Resolution was duly passed That the company should be wound up on the grounds that it is unable to pay its debts and that James B Kennedy of James B Kennedy & Co Ltd Unit A1, Boucher Business Studios, Glenmachan Place, Belfast BT12 6QH be appointed liquidator of the company.

(3424183)

Liquidation by the Court

APPOINTMENT OF LIQUIDATORS

THE INSOLVENCY (NORTHERN IRELAND) ORDER 1989 NOTICE OF APPOINTMENT OF LIQUIDATOR IN WINDING UP BY THE COURT **BLACKBOURNE LIMITED**

(Company Number NI007963)

I, Rachel Foster, HNH Partners Limited, Jefferson House, 42 Queen Street, Belfast BT1 6HL give notice that on 25 October 2019 I was appointed Liquidator of Blackbourne Limited by the Department for the Economy.

Rachel Foster Liquidator

Dated: 30 October 2019 (3424176)

FINAL MEETINGS

P.D.M. PROPERTIES LIMITED

(Company Number NI030975) WOODS DRYLINING LTD

(Company Number NI063059)

EUROXCHANGER CURRENCY SERVICES NI LTD

(Company Number NI071999)

J GRAY SCAFFOLDING LTD (Company Number NI061457)

SFH DEVELOPMENTS LTD

(Company Number NI611666)

GADA CONTRACTORS LIMITED

(Company Number NI031963) DOWNVIEW WEST LIMITED

(Company Number NI627736)

MOURNE MAINTENANCE SERVICES LTD

(Company Number NI043526)

CORPORATE APARTMENTS LTD

(Company Number NI065851)

BURNS PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT LTD

(Company Number NI058873)

Notice is hereby given pursuant to Rule 4.132 OF THE INSOLVENCY (NORTHERN IRELAND) RULES 1991 that Final Meetings of the Creditors of each of the above companies have been summoned by the Liquidator under Article 124 of the Insolvency (Northern Ireland) Order 1989 for the purpose of the Liquidator presenting his final report and obtaining his release.

These meetings will be held at the offices of Begbies Traynor LLP, Scottish Provident Building, 7 Donegall Square West, Belfast, BT1 6JH, on 9 December 2019 at 10:00, 10:15, 10:30, 10:45, 11:00, 11:15, 11:30, 11:45, 12:00 and 12:15 hours respectively.

Forms of Proxy, if intended to be used, must be duly completed and lodged at the offices of Begbies Traynor LLP, Scottish Provident Building, 7 Donegall Square West, Belfast, BT1 6JH, by no later than 12:00 noon on the preceding business day.

Ken Pattullo, Liquidator

1 November 2019

Ag MG80140 (3421339)

PETITIONS TO WIND-UP

In the High Court of Justice Northern Ireland No. 094303 of 2019

In the matter of **FERRIS JEWELLERS LIMITED**

Trading As: Ferris Jewellers Limited,

and in the matter of the Insolvency (Northern Ireland) Order 1989, A Petition to wind up Ferris Jewellers Limited (NI048904) of 7 Lombard Street, Belfast BT1 1RB, whose nature of business is 47789, presented on Monday 07 October 2019, at 15:44 by LAND & PROPERTY SERVICES (RATING), of Lanyon Plaza, Lanyon Place, Belfast BT1 3LP claiming to be a Creditor of the Company, will be heard at the Royal Courts of Justice, Chichester Street, Belfast, BT1 3JE, on Thursday 21 November 2019, at 10:00 hours (or as soon thereafter as the Petition can be heard).

Any person intending to appear on the hearing of the Petition (whether to support or oppose it) must give notice of intention to do so to the Petitioners or to their Solicitor in accordance with Rule 4.016 of the Insolvency Rules (Northern Island) 1991 by 16:00 hours on Wednesday 20 November 2019

The Petitioner(s) is/are Crown Solicitor for Northern Ireland, Royal Courts Of Justice, Chichester Street, Belfast BT1 3JY,, Telephone: 02890 542555, Email: insolvency@csoni.gov.uk (Reference number: KAG-5764.) (3423990)

In the High Court of Justice Northern Ireland No. 094255 of 2019

In the matter of **EDENDERRY PROPERTIES LIMITED**

Trading As: Edenderry Properties Limited,

and in the matter of the Insolvency (Northern Ireland) Order 1989,

A Petition to wind up Edenderry Properties Limited (NI064803) of 286 Tandragee Road, Portadown, Craigavon, Armagh BT62 3RB, whose nature of business is 68100, presented on Monday 07 October 2019, at 15:44 by LAND & PROPERTY SERVICES (RATING), of 3rd Floor, Lanyon Plaza, Lanyon Place, Belfast BT1 3LP claiming to be a Creditor of the Company, will be heard at the Royal Courts of Justice, Chichester Street, Belfast, BT1 3JE, on Thursday 21 November 2019, at 10:00 hours (or as soon thereafter as the Petition can be heard). Any person intending to appear on the hearing of the Petition

(whether to support or oppose it) must give notice of intention to do so to the Petitioners or to their Solicitor in accordance with Rule 4.016 of the Insolvency Rules (Northern Island) 1991 by 16:00 hours on Wednesday 20 November 2019

The Petitioner's Solicitor is Crown Solicitor for Northern Ireland, CROWN SOLICITORS OFFICE, Royal Courts Of Justice, Chichester Street, Belfast BT1 3JY,, Telephone: 02890 542555, Email: insolvency@csoni.gov.uk

Friday 08 November 2019 (3423822)

In the HIGH COURT OF JUSTICE IN NORTHERN IRELAND CHANCERY DIVISION (COMPANIES WINDING UP) No 19/99721 of

In the Matter of APG SUPPLIES & SERVICES LIMITED

(Company Number NI630416)

and in the Matter of the INSOLVENCY (NORTHERN IRELAND) ORDER

A Petition to wind up the above-named company with company number NI630416 and registered office address at 26 Cross Street, Enniskillen, Northern Ireland BT74 7DX presented on 23 October 2019 by LAKELAND AGRI LIMITED of Tullynahinera, Castleblayney, Co. Monaghan, A75 W710 Ireland

Date 5 December 2019

Time 10.00 hours (or as soon thereafter as the petition can be heard) Any person intending to appear on the hearing of the petition (whether to support or oppose it) must give notice of intention to do so to the petitioner or his/its solicitor in accordance with Rule 4.016 by 16.00 hour on 4 December 2019

The petitioner's solicitor is Meghan Kirk of Pinsent Masons Belfast LLP at the Soloist Building, 1 Lanyon Place, Belfast BT1 3LP

(3422222)Dated 8 November 2019

WINDING-UP ORDERS

THE INSOLVENCY (NORTHERN IRELAND) ORDER 1989 MOBILE VEHICLES SERVICES LTD

(Company Number NI637041)

By Order dated 10/10/2019, the above-named company (registered office at 5 The Villas, Mossley, Newtownabbey, BT36 5PD) was ordered to be wound up by the High Court of Justice in Northern Ireland.

Commencement of winding up, 25/07/2019

Official Receiver (3424181)

Members' voluntary liquidation

APPOINTMENT OF LIQUIDATORS

PURSUANT TO ARTICLE 95 OF THE INSOLVENCY ACT (NORTHERN IRELAND) ORDER 1989

Name of Company: SOTA (NI) LIMITED

Company Number: NI623513

Nature of Business: Development of building projects, construction of

commercial buildings and construction of domestic buildings

Type of Liquidation: Members

Registered office: 17 Purdysburn Hill, Belfast, BT8 8JY

Liquidator's Name and Address: Brigid Napier, Napier Solicitors, 1-9

Castle Arcade, Belfast, BT1 5DF Office Holder Number: 11498.

Date of Appointment: 31st October 2019

By whom Appointed: Members (3422226)

FINAL MEETINGS

IN THE MATTER OF DK CAPITAL INVESTMENTS LLP

(Company Number NC000855)

In Liquidation

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN, pursuant to Article 79 and Article 80 of the INSOLVENCY (NORTHERN IRELAND) ORDER 1989, that a General Meeting and Final Meeting of the above named LLP will be held at the offices of RSM, Number One, Lanyon Quay, Belfast, BT1 3LG on the 10 day of December 2019 AT 10.00 a.m. for the purpose of receiving an account of the Liquidators' acts and dealings and of the conduct of the winding-up to closure.

Forms of proxy, if intended to be used, must be duly completed and lodged at the offices of RSM, Number One, Lanyon Quay, Belfast, BT1 3LG, no later than 12.00 noon on the 9 day of December 2019.

DATED: this 4 day of November 2019

Stephen Armstrong Joint Liquidator

(3424174)

NOTICES TO CREDITORS

IN THE MATTER OF THE INSOLVENCY (NORTHERN IRELAND) ORDER 1989 IN THE MATTER OF

SOTA (NI) LIMITEDIN MEMBERS VOLUNTARY LIQUIDATION

(Company Number NI623513)

Notice is hereby given that by Special resolution passed on 31st October 2019, the above named Company was placed into Members (solvent) Voluntary Liquidation and Brigid Napier of Napier Solicitors, 1/9 Castle Arcade, Belfast, BT1 5DF, was appointed Liquidator. The Liquidator gives notice that the creditors of the above named Company are required on or before Monday, 2nd December 2019 to submit full details of their claims and their names and addresses to the Liquidator of the said Company at the above address, and if so required by notice in writing from the said Liquidator, are, personally or by their Solicitors to come in and prove their debt or claims at such time and place as shall be specified in such notice, or in default thereof they will be excluded from the benefit of any distribution made before such debts are proved.

PLEASE NOTE THAT THE ABOVE COMPANY IS NO LONGER TRADING, IS SOLVENT AND THAT THIS NOTICE IS PURELY A FORMALITY AS ALL LIABILITIES HAVE BEEN PAID OR WILL BE PAID IN FULL.

Dated this 31st day of October 2019 BRIGID NAPIER LIQUIDATOR

UIDATOR (3422219)

RESOLUTION FOR VOLUNTARY WINDING-UP

PURSUANT TO THE COMPANIES ACT 2006 & THE INSOLVENCY ORDER (NI) ORDER 1989 SOTA (NI) LIMITED

(Company Number NI623513)

Registered office: 17 Purdysburn Hill, Belfast, BT8 8JY

Passed 31st October 2019

At an Extraordinary General Meeting of the above Company duly convened and held at Napier Solicitors, 1/9 Castle Arcade, Belfast, BT1 5DF on Thursday, 31st October 2019 at 11.30 a.m. the following resolutions were passed:

Special Resolution

That the Company would be wound up as a voluntarily

Ordinary Resolution

That Brigid Napier, Solicitor and Licensed Insolvency Practitioner of 1/9 Castle Arcade, Belfast, be appointed Liquidator and she is hereby appointed Liquidator for the purposes of such winding-up;

Ordinary Resolution

That the remuneration of the Liquidator be fixed by reference to the time properly spent by the Liquidator and her staff in attending to matters arising in the Winding-up;

Ordinary Resolution

That in order to expedite the matter a shorter period of time than the requisite 21 days was agreed.

Kevin Coogan, Chairman (3422223)

PEOPLE

Wills & probate

DECEASED ESTATES - BELFAST EDITION

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN pursuant to section 28 (Deceased Estates) of the Trustee Act (Northern Ireland) 1958, that any person having a claim against or an interest in the estate of any of the deceased persons whose names and addresses are set out below is hereby required to send particulars in writing of his claim or interest to the person or persons whose names and addresses are set out below, and to send such particulars before the date specified in relation to that deceased person displayed below, after which date the personal representatives will distribute the estate among the persons entitled thereto having regard only to the claims and interests of which they have had notice and will not, as respects the property so distributed, be liable to any person of whose claim they shall not then have had notice.

Name of Deceased (Surname first)	Address, description and date of death of Deceased	te Names addresses and descriptions of Persons to whom notices of claims are to be given and names, in parentheses, of Personal given Representatives		
MCKEOWN, CIARAN JOSEPH	78 SOUTH PARADE BELFAST BT7 2GQ. 1 September 2019	McEvoy Sheridan Solicitors, 344 Ormeau Road, Belfast BT7 2HL, Solicitors for the Personal Representatives	16 January 2020	(3424177)

Terms and conditions relating to submission of notices

The Gazette (which includes the London, Belfast and Edinburgh Gazette) is an official public record and the United Kingdom's longest continuously published newspaper. It is managed by The National Archives (a non-ministerial government department) under a concessionary contract with The Stationery Office Limited ("TSO" or the "Publisher", as defined below). Any capitalised terms referred to in these terms and conditions relating to submission of notices are defined below.

By placing a Notice in The Gazette you are consenting to put official information permanently on the public record and in the public domain, online (in The Gazette website or via The Gazette mobile app), in print, and via a data service (rather than by having to search for notices on The Gazette website, customers can either create a pdf of the Notices that they are interested in, or subscribe to an electronic version of The Gazette (in full or in part) which is provided as a data service).

These terms should be read in conjunction with:

- 1 The Publisher's privacy policy www.thegazette.co.uk/privacy
- 2 The Publisher's policies relating to submission of notice www.thegazette.co.uk/place-notice/policy

which together govern the submission of Notices.

Advertisers, as defined below, may place a Notice in The Gazette either because there is a statutory requirement to do so, or to do so voluntarily to put information in The Gazette in order to create an official record of fact. All Advertisers must have the authority to place the notice that they submit for publishing. TSO, as the Publisher, is required to verify the authority of Advertisers who place Notices and has the authority to refuse to publish Notices from Advertisers whose authority cannot be effectively verified.

Notices received for publication usually fall under the following broad headings:

Church, Companies, Environment and Infrastructure, Health and Medicine, Honours and awards, Money, Parliament and Assemblies, People, Royal Family and State. Further information can be found at www.thegazette.co.uk.

These terms and conditions ("Terms and Conditions") govern submission of Notices (as defined below) to The Gazette. By submitting Notices, howsoever communicated, whether at the website www.thegazette.co.uk (the "Website") or by email, post and/or facsimile, the Advertiser (as defined below) agrees to be bound by these Terms and Conditions. Where the Advertiser is acting as an agent or as a representative of a principal, the Advertiser warrants that the principal agrees to be bound by these Terms and Conditions. The Publisher reserves the right to modify these Terms and Conditions at any time. Such modifications shall be effective immediately upon publication. By submitting Notices to The Gazette after the Publisher has published such modifications, the Advertiser, including any principal, agrees to be bound by the revised Terms and Conditions.

1 Definitions

1.1 In these Terms and Conditions: "Advertiser" means any agency, company, firm, organisation or person who has requested to place a Notice in The Gazette, whether acting on their own account or as agent or representative of a principal; "Authorised Scale of Charges" means the scale of charges set out at in the printed copy of the Gazette or at www.thegazette.co.uk/placenotice/pricing, as modified from time to time; "Charges" means the payment due for the acceptance of a Notice by the Publisher payable by the Advertiser as set out in the Authorised Scale of Charges; "Forwarding Service" means the service provided to use The Gazette's postal box for correspondence in relation to deceased estates Notices; "Local Newspaper Notice" means any notice placed in a local newspaper other than The Gazette; "Notice" means all advertisements and state, public, legal or other notices (without limitation) submitted for potential publication in The Gazette by the Advertiser, save in respect of any Local Newspaper Notice, to which other terms may apply where indicated in these Terms and Conditions; "Publisher" means The Stationery Office Limited or TSO, with registered company number 03049649, acting in accordance with the concessionary contract awarded by The National Archives.

- 1.2 the singular includes the plural and vice-versa; and
- 1.3 any reference to any legislative provision shall be deemed to include any subsequent re-enactment or amending provision.

2 By submitting a Notice to the Publisher, the Advertiser agrees to be bound by these Terms and Conditions which, unless stated otherwise in these Terms and Conditions, represent the entire terms agreed between the parties in relation to the publication of Notices in The Gazette and which every Notice shall be subject to. For the avoidance of doubt, these Terms and Conditions shall prevail over any other terms or conditions (whether or not inconsistent with these Terms and Conditions) contained or referred to in any correspondence or documentation submitted by the Advertiser or implied by custom, practice or course of dealing which the parties agree shall not apply, unless otherwise expressly agreed in writing by the Publisher.

3 The Publisher reserves the right, to be exercised at its sole and absolute discretion, to make reasonable efforts to verify the validity of the Advertiser

- 4 The Publisher may, at its sole and absolute discretion edit the Notice, subject to the following restrictions:
 - 4.1 the sense of the Notice submitted by the Advertiser will not be altered;
 - 4.2 Notices shall be edited for house style only, not for content;
 - 4.3 Notices can be edited to remove obvious duplications of information;
 - 4.4 Notices can be edited to re-position material for style;
 - 4.5 any additions, amendments or deletions required in order to include the minimum necessary information set out in any Notice guidelines shall be confirmed with the Advertiser; and

4.6 subject to clause 5 below, no amendments to the text (other than those made as a consequence of 4(i) - (v) above) shall be made without confirmation from the Advertiser.

For the avoidance of doubt, the Advertiser agrees and accepts that, subject to the limited rights to edit any Notice referred to above, it is the Advertiser that shall be solely responsible for the content of any Notice, including its validity and accuracy and that the Publisher shall not be responsible for, nor shall have any liability in respect of such content in any way whatsoever.

5 The Advertiser accepts that it submits a Notice entirely at its own risk and that the Publisher shall have the sole and absolute discretion whether to accept a Notice for publication; whether to publish it (including after acceptance); the timing of any publication of a Notice; or whether to remove or withdraw the Notice after publication, such decision to be final. The Advertiser must satisfy itself as to the legal, statutory and/or procedural requirements and accuracy relating to any Notice and, for the avoidance of doubt, the Publisher shall have the sole and absolute discretion to refuse to publish or withdraw from publication (if already published) any Notices where the content of the Notice, in the Publisher's sole and absolute opinion, may not comply with any such requirements. In instances where publication has not yet taken place, the Publisher shall notify the Advertiser of any action required to remedy any deficiency and publication shall not take place until the Publisher is satisfied that such action has been taken by the Advertiser. Where publication has taken place the Notice placer will be contacted with the proposed remedy which may include, but is not limited to, removal, reinsertion, retraction or substitution notice.

6 Save for any liability that cannot be excluded or restricted by law (including fraudulent misrepresentation, or for death or personal injury resulting from the negligence of either party or their agents, subcontractors and/or or employees) which shall not be limited or excluded in any way, the Publisher, The National Archives, or any successor organisation's (including affiliates, officers, directors, agents, subcontractors and/or employees) total aggregate liability (including any liabilities, losses, damages, expenses, costs (including all interest, penalties, legal costs and other professional costs and/or expenses), whether in contract (including under an indemnity or warranty), tort (including negligence), misrepresentation (other than fraudulent misrepresentation), equity, breach of statutory duty, strict liability or otherwise at law, and whether arising from the acts and/or omissions of the Publisher or The National Archives or arising out of or made in connection with any Notice or otherwise shall be limited to one hundred and fifty (150) per cent of the value of the Charge paid for such Notice under these Terms and Conditions.

6A Other than as set out in clause 6 above, neither the Publisher, nor The National Archives, shall have any liability in respect of any act and/or omission of the Advertiser and/or any third party or in respect of any Notice submitted by any Advertiser for potential publication in

The Gazette, which the Advertiser warrants and accepts is solely its responsibility.

7 For the avoidance of doubt, subject to clause 6 above and save for the payment of the Charges, in no circumstances shall either party be liable for any losses including, without limitation, loss of revenues, profits, contracts, business or savings or anticipated savings, any loss of goodwill or reputation, or any special, indirect or consequential damages (however arising, including negligence).

8 Where the Publisher is responsible for any error or has published a Notice in error a, the Publisher shall at no charge to the Advertiser, either remove the Notice or publish a reinsertion, retraction or substitution Notice as appropriate at the next suitable opportunity. Both parties agree (including on behalf of any principal, if applicable) that this shall be the sole remedy of the Advertiser (including any principal, if applicable) and the full extent of the limit of the Publisher's liability in these circumstances.

9 . In the event that the Publisher believes, in its sole opinion, an Advertiser is submitting Notices in bad faith, is in breach of clause 11 below, or has dealings with Advertisers who are in breach of these Terms and Conditions or has breached such Terms and Conditions previously, the Publisher may require further verification of information to be provided by the Advertiser and may, at its sole and absolute discretion, delay publication of those Notices until it is satisfied that the Notice it has received is based on authentic information.

10 The location of the Notice in The Gazette shall be at the discretion of the Publisher. For the avoidance of doubt, the Notice shall be published in the house style of The Gazette.

11 The Advertiser warrants:

11.1 that it has the right, power and authority to submit the Notice; 11.2 the Notice is true and accurate in all respects and does not mislead or contain potentially fraudulent information:

11.3 the Notice is submitted in good faith, does not contravene any law (statutory or otherwise), nor is it in any way illegal, defamatory or an infringement of any other party's rights or of any applicable advertising regulations, guidelines or codes of practice, nor is it subject to any court order prohibiting such publication.

12 To the extent permissible by law the Publisher excludes all warranties, conditions or other terms, whether implied by statute or otherwise, relating to the placing of any Notices.

13 The Advertiser agrees to fully indemnify (as a debt) and hold the Publisher and The National Archives or any successor organisation, including any affiliates, officers, directors, agents, subcontractors and employees harmless from all liabilities, costs, expenses, damages and losses (including, without limitation) any direct, indirect, consequential and/or special losses and/or damage, loss of profit, loss of reputation and/or goodwill and all interest, penalties and legal costs (calculated on a full indemnity basis) and all other professional costs and/or expenses (including legal costs) suffered or incurred (including negligence) in respect of any matter arising out of, in connection with or relating to any Notice (including, without limitation, clause 11 of the Terms and Conditions) and including (without limitation) in respect of any claim and/or demand (including threatened and/or potential claims or demands) made by any third party which may constitute a breach and/or potential breach by the Advertiser (or their principal) of these Terms and Conditions or of any law and/or any of the rights of a third party. The Publisher shall consult with the Advertiser as to the way in which such applicable claims, demands or potential claims or demands are handled but the Publisher shall retain the sole, absolute and final decision on all aspects of any matter arising from the aforementioned indemnity, including the choice of instructing legal representatives, steps taken in or related litigation and/or decisions to settle the case. The Advertiser shall use best endeavours to provide, at its own expense, such cooperation and assistance as the Publisher may reasonably request including in respect of any principal (if applicable) and including , without limitation, the provision of and/or access to witnesses, access to premises and delivery up of documents and/or any evidence, including supporting any associated litigation and/or dispute resolution process.

14 The Advertiser shall promptly notify the Publisher in writing of any actual, threatened or suspected claim made by a third party or parties against the Advertiser and/or the Publisher in relation to a Notice. The Publisher reserves the right, following a claim or threatened claim, to immediately remove the Notice which is the subject of the complaint from the website at www.thegazette.co.uk and all other websites controlled by the Publisher containing the Notice, as well as from any other medium in which the Notice has been placed that is controlled

by The Gazette, where possible. The Publisher may (at its sole and absolute discretion) require the Advertiser to amend the Notice at its own cost before it agrees to re-publish the Notice if it is capable of rectification to avoid the claim, threatened or suspected claim. Any reinstatement of the Notice shall be at the sole and absolute discretion of the Publisher, whose decision in respect of such matter shall be final.

In exceptional circumstances, for example if the Notice was found by the Publisher to have been submitted by an unauthorised Advertiser, the Publisher (upon receiving written approval from The National Archives) will remove a Notice in its entirety from www.thegazette.co.uk, but will retain the Notice identification online and include explanatory text saying why and when the Notice was removed.

15 The Advertiser acknowledges that the Publisher may re-use Notices and/or allow third parties to re-use Notices accepted for publication in The Gazette for ongoing Gazette-related activity – for example to create a company profile page on The Gazette website and where you have also opted for a newspaper advertisement as well as a Gazette notice - and hereby assigns to the Publisher for and on behalf of the Crown, all rights, including but not limited to, copyright and/or other such intellectual property rights (as applicable) in all Notices, and warrants that any such activity in respect of any Notice (including any activity in the preparation of such Notice for publication in The Gazette) by the Publisher and/or third parties does not and will not infringe any legal right of the Advertiser or any third party. For the avoidance of doubt, all Notices and any content therein shall be Crown copyright and may be subject to the Open Government Licence (or any variation thereof).

16 The Advertiser accepts that the purpose of The Gazette is to disseminate information of interest to the public as widely as possible in the public interest. The Advertiser accepts that the information contained in the Notices published in The Gazette may be used for additional purposes by the Publisher or third parties after publication as stated above and that such use may be beyond the control of The Gazette. In such instances, the Advertiser agrees that the Publisher shall have no liability whatsoever in respect of such use by the Publisher or third parties.

17 The Advertiser acknowledges and agrees that the publication of any Notice is subject to any court order and/or direction of the court or such other regulatory and/or enforcement authorities including the Information Commissioner's Office, the police, the Financial Conduct Authority (and such other related regulatory organisations), the Solicitors Regulation Authority and such other authorities as may be applicable (without limitation) and that the Publisher may delay, refuse to publish or withdraw from publication if it has received evidence to that effect and may not publish such notice until it has received written evidence from the court (as the Publisher may reasonably require from time to time) that demonstrates that any previous order and/or direction has been withdrawn and/or is no longer applicable (as the Publisher may reasonably require from time to time) and/or, subject to any statutory and/or applicable laws, The Gazette may share information and/or data related to the Notice and/or the Advertiser's account related to such authorities and the Advertiser hereby consents to such disclosure(s).

18 In respect of any Local Newspaper Notice, this clause 18 shall apply. For the avoidance of doubt, all other terms of the Terms and Conditions shall apply to Local Newspaper Notices only to the extent that they do not conflict with the terms set out below. In the event of any conflict, the terms set out in this clause 18 shall prevail:

18.1 The Local Newspaper Notice may be placed in a local newspaper by any subcontractor and/or a third party organisation at the Publisher's sole and absolute discretion and the Advertiser hereby consents to such use (including any activity that is ancillary and/or reasonably necessary to such use). For the avoidance of doubt, this may include the processing of personal data in accordance with the EU General Data Protection Regulation (Regulation 2016/679), and any legislation which implements, amends, re-enacts or replaces it in England and Wales, Northern Ireland or Scotland ("GDPR"), by the Publisher, any subcontractor and/or third party organisation, together with the local newspaper and related organisations:

18.2 The placement of a Local Newspaper Notice shall be upon the standard terms and conditions of the local newspaper in question in addition to these Terms and Conditions. The Advertiser expressly agrees to such local newspaper terms and by submitting a Local Newspaper Notice to The Gazette, expressly consents to the

Publisher, its subcontractors and/or any applicable third party organisation agreeing to such terms on behalf of the Advertiser;

18.3 To the extent that such local newspaper and the applicable terms allow, where the Publisher, any subcontractor, any third party acting on behalf of the Publisher and/or the local newspaper is responsible for any error including (without limitation), the Publisher , the Publisher shall arrange for the local newspaper to publish the corrected Local Newspaper Notice at no additional cost to the Advertiser. Both parties agree (including on behalf of any principal, if applicable) that this shall be the sole remedy of the Advertiser (including any principal, if applicable) and the full extent of the limit of liability in these circumstances;

In the event that a corrected Local Newspaper Notice is not published for whatever reason, the total aggregate liability of the Publisher and The National Archives, whether direct or indirect, and including (without limitation) all liabilities, losses, damages, expenses, costs (including all interest, penalties, legal costs and/or other professional costs and/or expenses) suffered or incurred, howsoever arising (including negligence), whether arising from the acts and/or omissions of the Publisher, The National Archives and/or the Advertiser and/or any third party (including, without limitation, any principal of the Advertiser) or arising out of or made in connection with the Notice or otherwise shall be limited to the value of the Local Newspaper Notice placed through The Gazette except that nothing in these Terms and Conditions shall limit or exclude any liability for fraudulent misrepresentation, or for death or personal injury resulting from the Publisher's or The National Archives' negligence or the negligence of the their agents, subcontractors and/or employees or third parties acting on behalf of the Publisher.

19 In respect of the use of the Forwarding Service, The Gazette will replace the Advertiser or executor's address with The Gazette's postal

box address in the Notice, and Local Newspaper Notice if applicable. All correspondence received will be sent on from The Gazette to the Advertiser or executor (if different). The Forwarding Service will remain in place for a period of 10 months from publication of the Notice in The Gazette, or 10 months from publication of the Notice in a Local Newspaper, in line with the Inheritance (Provision for Family and Dependants) Act 1975. After the 10 months period has lapsed any correspondence received will be returned to the sender where possible or securely destroyed, and the Advertiser or executor's name and address details will be removed from the Forwarding Service.

20 The Advertiser accepts that the Charges may be amended from time to time and will be payable at the rate in force at the time of invoicing unless otherwise agreed by the Publisher in writing. The Charges must be paid in full by the Advertiser in advance of publication unless other requirements of the Publisher in respect of the payment of such Charges (as determined from time to time) are notified to the Advertiser.

21 If the Advertiser wishes to make a complaint, all such complaints shall be submitted in writing to customer.services@thegazette.co.uk
22 Save in respect of The National Archives (or any successor organisation), a person who is not a party to these Terms and Conditions has no right under the Contracts (Rights of Third Parties) Act 1999 to enforce any term of these Terms and Conditions but this does not affect any right or remedy of a party specified in these Terms and Conditions or which exists or is available apart from that Act.

23 These Terms and Conditions and all other express terms of the contract shall be governed and construed in accordance with the laws of England and the parties hereby submit to the exclusive jurisdiction of the English courts.

All communications on the business of The Belfast Gazette should be addressed to The Belfast Gazette, TSO Ireland, 19a Weavers Court, Weavers Court Business Park, Linfield Road, Belfast, BT12 5GH

Telephone: +44 (0)28 9089 5135 Fax: +44 (0)28 9023 5401

Email: belfast@thegazette.co.uk



AUTHORISED SCALE OF CHARGES From 1 January 2019		Public sector placing mandatory notices or state notices		All other advertisers	
	All charges are exclusive of VAT at the prevailing rate, currently 20%	XML, webform, Gazette template	Other	XML, webform, Gazette template	Other
	No VAT is payable on printed copies	Ex VAT	Ex VAT	Ex VAT	Ex VAT
	Corporate and Personal Insolvency Notices	£0.00	£22.65	£64.25	£87.50
	(2 - 5 Related Companies/Individuals charged at double the single rate)	£0.00	£45.30	£128.50	£175.00
1	(6 - 10 Related Companies charged at treble the single rate)	20.00	£67.95	£192.75	£262.50
	[Pursuant to the Insolvency Act 1986, the Insolvency Rules 1986, Companies (Forms) (Amendment) Regulations 1987 and any subsequent amending legislation]				
2	Deceased Estates Notices Pursuant to s.28 Trustee Act (Northern Ireland) 1958			£64.25	£87.50
	All other Notices - charged by event	20.00	£22.65	£64.25	£87.50
3	(2 - 5 Related events will be charged at double the single rate)	20.00	£45.30	£128.50	£175.00
	(6 - 10 Related events will be charged at treble the single rate)	20.00	£67.95	£192.75	£262.50
	If you are unsure how to price your notice or your notice contains more than 40 events please contact belfast@thegazette.co.uk				
4	Offline proofing		£39.70		£39.70
5	Late advertisements - accepted after 3pm, one day prior to publication		£39.70		£39.70
6	Withdrawal of Notices - after 3pm, one day prior to publication		£22.65	£64.25	£87.50
7	Other services				
	A brand, logo, map, signature image	£56.75	£56.75	£58.40	£58.40
	Forwarding service for Deceased Estates	£56.75	£56.75	£58.40	£58.40
	Newspaper placement for Deceased Estates (webform and template only)	£190.00		£190.00	
	Redaction of information within a published notice	£192.90	£192.90	£192.90	£192.90
	Reinsertion of notice	£22.65	£22.65	£64.25	£87.50

- A single edition of the printed copy is available to notice placers for £1.95 and non-notice placers for £3.90 (VAT exempt)
- An annual subscription to the printed copy is available to notice placers for £99.45 and non-notice placers for £198.90 (VAT exempt)
- An annual subscription to the pdf copy is available to all customers for £116.50 (plus VAT)
- A commemorative edition of this issue, or any past issue of The Gazette, is available for £70.00 (VAT exempt)
- Take advantage of The Gazette's research service: £30.00 for an individual/company name

For more information or to purchase a subscription or a commemorative edition, please telephone +44 (0)333 200 2434 or email customer.services@thegazette.co.uk, or visit www.thegazette.co.uk/shop

For more information and pricing for our data service please telephone +44 (0)1603 696981 or email data@thegazette.co.uk



a Williams Lea company

Published by TSO (The Stationery Office), a Williams Lea company, and available from:

Online

www.tsoshop.co.uk

Mail, Telephone, Fax & E-mail

TSO

PO BOX 29, Norwich, NR3 1GN

Telephone orders/General enquiries: +44 (0)333 202 5070

Fax orders: +44 (0)333 202 5080 E-mail: customer.services@tso.co.uk Textphone: +44 (0)333 202 5077

TSO@Blackwell and other Accredited Agents



Published and printed in the UK by TSO Limited under the authority and superintendence of Jeff James, Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office being the Government Printer for Northern Ireland and the Officer appointed to print Acts of the Northern Ireland Assembly.